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13

(2018 12 31 )

14

(2019 12 31 )

15

(2020 12 31 )

16

(2021 12 31 )

17

(2022 12 31 )

@ 22,128,940 19,455,973 23,334,307 29,256,988 29,769,450
3,013.630 2,649.612 (3,177.783 (3,984.363 (4,054.153

) ) )

(®) 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 © ) ( ) © )

© -53,066,805 17,037,083 43,891,244 -25,503,132 64,593,275
~7,226.903 2,320.195 (5,977.329 (-3,473.144 (8,796.635

) ) ) ) )

O -29,133,560 ~12,096,477 31,794,767 6,291,635 70,884,911
(-3,967.554 -1,647.359 (4,329.970 (856.826 (9,653.462

) ) ) )

© 2 2 2 2 2

) -29,133,560 ~12,096,477 31,794,767 6,291,635 70,884,911
~3,967.554 -1,647.359 (4,329.970 (856.826 (9,653.462
) ) )

@ 3,121,103,273 | 2,766,918,580 | 4,246,453,773 | 5,074,454,507 | 5,570,386,278
425,047.449 376,812.808 |  (578,303.307 |  (691,064.587 | (\758,603.055

) ) ) )

OF! -14,566,780 -6,048,239 15,897,384 3,145,818 35,442,456
6 ~1,983.777 -823.679 (2,164.985 (428.413 (4,826.731

' ) ) ) ) )
OF! -26,533,403 8,518,542 21,945,622 -12,751,566 32,296,638
-3,613.451 1,160.098 (2,988.665 |  (-17,365.720 (4,398.318

) ) ) ) )
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)
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-0.9334 -0.4372% ~0.7487% 0.1240% 1.2725%

(m
( 9 182.1501 140.8433% 138, 04550% -405,3498% 91.1242%
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2023 1 16
2024 1
60,715,470 73,706,421 105,440,670
WTI 109,320 131,759 747,369 189,662
18,428 22,211 125,969 31,970
5,815 7,007 39,751 10,088
11,084 13,357 75,776 19,227
10,517 12,674 71,892 18,243
142,934 1,281,916 248,641
COMEX 16,861 151,398 29,297
33,334 299,297 57,904
11,926 106,617 20,694
5,398 46,088 9,460
84,223 833,405 146,156
24,564 243,231 42,615
65,732 273,160
494,993 2,054,454
428,413 844,479 1,144,397
60,916 120,219 162,879
475,601 939,489 1,272,196
21,374 42,221 57,170
4,296 8,485
29,728 58,726 159,086
57,061 112,386 303,338
334,880 657,203 1,780,796
45,912 90,693
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2023 1 16 2024 1

84,998,115 | 125,807,248 | 108,220,607 | 130,242,088 | 124,482,691 | 119,748,119 | 84,768,589

152,905 226,455 194,506 234,497 215,533 152,576

25,774 38,176 32,790 39,530 36,333 25,722

8,134 12,045 10,345 12,473 11,465 8,116

15,503 22,960 19,721 23,775 21,848 15,466

14,708 21,780 18,710 22,555 20,732 14,675

205,304 200,400 296,749 306,629 293,298 281,717 199,376

24,263 23,615 34,970 36,168 34,656 33,234 23,524

48,024 46,676 69,132 71,505 68,599 65,705 46,503

17,195 16,685 24,709 25,586 24,546 23,518 16,650

7,585 7,618 11,254 11,584 10,833 10,645 7,534

121,323 117,829 174,463 149,959 180,664 173,225 117,562

35,405 34,353 50,881 43,728 52,687 50,547 34,284

94,748 91,940 136,163 117,223 135,266 129,597 91,742

711,951 692,559 1,025,125 882,056 1,016,325 976,020 691,117

615,512 - 763,433 918,995 878,739 844,802 598,086

87,664 - 108,514 130,666 125,152 120,117 85,043

685,529 - 846,189 1,020,171 978,696 937,654 663,773

30,807 - 38,029 45,847 43,980 42,137 29,830

6,191 - 7,644 9,212 8,840 8,469 5,993
42,854 - 61,581 52,896 63,768 61,178 58,610
81,823 - 118,258 101,753 122,405 116,805 112,532
477,443 - 694,892 598,029 718,424 681,508 660,507

66,178 - 95,103 81,686 98,479 94,476 90,514 64,078
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Q)

WisdomTree Management
Jersey Limited

The Law
Debenture Trust Corporation
p-l.c.

R&H Fund
Services (Jersey) Limited R&H

Computershare Investor
Services (Jersey) Limited
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24
(®)
1
©
©)
4 1
2022 12 31
70,885,911 9,653,461,604.535
2
5
13 14 15 16 17
2018 12 31 2019 12 31 2020 12 31 (2021 12 31 )| (2022 12 31 )
-29,133,560 -12,096,477 31,794,767 6,291,635 70,884,911
-3,967,553,869 -1,647,358,720 (4,329,970,344 (856,826,312 (9,653,461,605
) ) )
2
2 2 2 2
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2022 12 31
2 100%
JE2  4WX
31
SM
2014 7 1 CME
2014 7 1 (Dow Jones)
SM
http://www.bloombergindexes.com
1998 1991 1
3 S
3 2006 7 1991
2006 2 2008 3
2011 12
2012 12 2010 6
1991 1991

100

10SCO 19
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RIS
B.
LME
27
2a
1

INYMEX(  4) Henry Hub Natural Gas (NG) 5 7 9 11
WT1 INYMEX(  4) Light, Sweet Crude Oil (CL) 5 7 9 11
ICEC 3) Brent Crude Oil (B) 5 7 9 11
INYMEX(  4) RBOB Gasoline (RB) 5 7 9 11
INYMEX(  4) Heating Oil (HO) 5 7 9 11
ICEC 3) Low Sulphur Gas Oil (QS) 5 7 9 11
LME High Grade Primary Aluminium (AL) 5 7 9 11
COMEX(  4) Copper (HG) 5 7 9 12
LME Special High Grade Zinc (ZN) 5 7 11 1
LME Primary Nickel (NI) 5 7 9 11
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COMEX( 4) Gold (GC) Y 4 6 8 12
COMEX( 4) Silver (SI) 3 5 7 0 12
CME(C 2) Live Cattle (LC) 2 4 6 8 10 12
CME(C 2) Lean Hogs (LH) 2 4 6 7 8 10 12
CBOT( 2) Soft Wheat (W) 3 5 7 0 12
KCBT Kansas Wheat (KW) 3 5 7 9 12
CBOT( 2) Corn (C) 3 5 7 0 12
CBOT(  2) Soybeans (S) 3 5 7 11 1
INYBOT World Sugar No. 11 (SB) 3 5 7 10
NYBOT Cotton (CT) 3 5 7 12
INYBOT Coffee (KC) 3 5 7 9 12
CBOT( 2) Soybean Oil (BO) 3 5 7 12 1
CBOT( 2) Soybean Meal (SM) 3 5 7 12 1
INYBOT Cocoa (CC) 3 5 7 9 12
LME Refined Standard Lead (LL) 3 5 7 9 11 1
NYMEX(  4) Platinum (PL) i 7 10 1
LME Refined Tin (LT) 3 5 7 9 11
QY
( 2) Chicago Board of Trade Chicago Mercantile Exchange) 2007

( 3) ICE Futures US

( 9 New York Mercantile Exchange, Inc 2008 CME
3 SM SM
3 SM 3
3 SM
SM 2b
1
2020 6
12 SM 2020 9
3 SM 2020 9
S 2020 11
2b SM
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12
3 3 5 5 7 7 9 9 11 11 1 1
wTl 3 3 5 5 7 7 9 9 11 11 1 1
3 3 5 5 7 7 9 9 11 11 1 1
3 3 5 5 7 7 9 9 11 11 1 1
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8 10 10 12 12 2
8 10 10 12 12 2
9 9 12 12 12 3
9 9 12 12 12 3
11 11 11 11 1 1
12 12 12 12 1 1
9 9 11 11 1 1
9 9 12 12 12 3
9 9 11 11 1 1
9 9 11 11 1 1
9 9 11 11 1 1
9 9 11 11 1 1
8 12 12 12 12 2
9 9 12 12 12 3
10 10 10 1 1 1
10 10 10 3 3 3
12 12 12 12 12 3
9 9 12 12 12 3
9 9 12 12 12 3
9 11 11 1 1 3
9 9 11 11 1 1
9 9 12 12 12 3
12 12 12 12 1 1
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http://etfs.wisdomtree.eu/retail/uk/en-gb/pricing.aspx.

CME
UBS CME
CME CME 4
0.00000005 7
SM
G, v I¢,ox Mda,)x PFa,v /7 10
i
t
(.t t i
1G.v
M@, v
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https://www.wisdomtree.eu/en-
gb/pricing
1
M@, v

M@G,t) Md,t-1) 1 CAQu.,v
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CA(1,1v)

100 1

https://www.wisdomtree.eu/ en-gh/ pricingdated
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https://www.wisdomtree.eu/en-gh/pricing

2006 1 17
WisdomTree
10 1
10 1
2007 9 7
3 sm  WisdomTree 10
10

CME
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0.00000005 7
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2023 6 14
3.50701859 64.07470347
0.9961249 0.9961249
0.3493429 6.3826408
2,054,454 273,160
0.00000035 0.00000638
0.71770892 1.74348216 2.4611911
SM
3 SM
RIS

RIS

27/216



EDINETOOOO
O000oO00oooooo00o0O00ooo0oboOo0oOoOE23770)
OOoooooooooooOooao

28/216



EDINETOOOO
O000oO00oooooo00o0O00ooo0oboOo0oOoOE23770)
OOoooooooooooOooao

2
70 9,532 9,500
250,000,000
340 ,625 CIP
100
7,500,000 10
2,138 2013 1
7,500,000 10 2,138
250,000,000 340 4,625 CIP 100
150,000,000 225 3,150

RIS

29/216



EDINETOOOO
O000oO00oooooo00o0O00ooo0oboOo0oOoOE23770)
OOoooooooooooOooao

Gy

30/216



EDINETOOOO
O000oO00oooooo00o0O00ooo0oboOo0oOoOE23770)
OOoooooooooooOooao

30
.
2 RIS
20
CME
)
)
2.5
60 2
RIS
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/
MLI 70 7,000,000,000
953,295
2006 9
€Y
rolling
8 10
10 11
roll yield
backwardation
10
11
contango
10 11
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/
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3 S
©
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30
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Supervisory Committee
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EU
EU (2014/59/EU)(  BRAD ) EU
( )
BRRD
BRAD
EU BRRD 2018
MLI  CGML BRRD BRRD
( )
BRRD
BRRD
MLI MLI COML COML
( )
BRRD (
)
SRR
( SRR ) SRR
) ( GSIB )

( ) @
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2019 7 1
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2019 6 28
SRR
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30
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Exchange Traded
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2013 2 14 EU
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45 55 202 51 49

A+
2021 A+ 2022 9 19 AA 2021 AA
2022 9 19
COVID-19

o

CREST
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IFRS 13

15

coviD-19
COVID-19

2022 2 24

2022 3 7 3
3NIS 2022 3 7

2022 3 7 3NIS
2022 3 7
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3NIS
3NIS
2022 3 7
3
2022 3
2022 3 22
3NIL 3NIL
3NIL 3NIL

-,
-

(e
IFRS 7
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3NIS
3NIS
2022 3 21
3NIL
21
2022 3 22 3NIL
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IFRS 13
15
/
1
NAV
2
12 31
2022 2021
(5,443,574,868)  (741,333,243) (5,016,967,024) (683,235,654))

(12,285,749)
5,526,745,526

(1,673,135) (3,466,895) (472,139)
752,659,839 5,026,725,552 684,564,619

5,514,459, 77

750,986,705 5,023,258,657 684,092,480
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3
1
5
1 2
2023 12 31 12,285,749 1,673,135
2021 3,466,895 (472,139 ) 1 2 2020
1 2 0 2021 1
3,466,895 472,139 2021 2,181,420 297,077 2
1
0.08%
500 85,467

500
85,467

0.49%
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0.49%
0.35
0.05%
RIS
RIS 30
4
0.45%
0.45%
2023 6 14

-0.0001037%
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-0.0000996%

-0.0000641

a)
20.315%

15.315% 5% 2038
20%
b)
3
c)
2016 1 1
2015 12 31

2016 1 1
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2016 1 1 2016 12 31

2018 4 1 31%
35

@

(b)

©)

(D
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(e)
2009 12 1
2009 12 1
2009 12 1
2009 12 1
2009 12 1
2009 12 1
2009 1 1
WisdomTree Jerseylssuer Tax
Information https://www.wisdomtree.eu/en-gh/resource-

library/prospectus-and-regulatory-reports#tab-2A942D42-5AA1-4008-9080-3C2DADB050A7
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Q)
),
(
)
(h)
20%
2006 S.1. No.2006/964 (
)
/
2009 9 1
(1)
)
)

)
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) OECD
FATCA
OECD
CRS
CRS

CRS FATCA

CRS 2017 9
CRS
CRS

CRS

1961

0.75% 10
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)
FATCA 30
2013 12 13
18
2014
(OECD)
OECD
CRS
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30

FATCA

FATCA

FATCA

2017

57/216

OOoooooooooooOooao

FATCA
2014 6
O X( )
CRS
CRS
2015



EDINETOOOO
O000oO00oooooo00o0O00ooo0oboOo0oOoOE23770)
OOoooooooooooOooao

CRS

BEPS
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2022 12 31
% (2
5,526,745,526 752,660 99.22
5,570,386,278 758,603 100.00
5,499,501,367 748,950 98.73
70,884,911 9,653 1.27
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2022 12 31
%
3,884,705,938 0.02 2 69,063,856 9,405 2.23%
WTI
92,110,973 9.25 1,260 852,304,915 116,071 27.55%
137,211 46.51 6,334 6,381,749 869 0.21%
43,465,291 3.26 444 141,777,851 19,308 4.58%
14,728,219 33.64 4,582 495,520,922 67,483 16.02%
7,473,087 27.93 3,803 208,706,983 28,423 6.75%
133,148,499 0.78 106 103,835,910 14,141 3.36%
22,608,847 1.35 183 30,416,876 4,142 0.98%
557,319 30.91 4,210 17,227,568 2,346 0.56%
11,208,932 11.69 1,593 131,082,960 17,852 4.24%
15,642,932 4.49 611 70,224,246 9,563 2.27%
37,820,956 16.17 2,202 611,423,242 83,267 19.76%
48,201,512 6.73 916 324,325,705 44,168 10.48%
6,458,806 4.92 670 31,793,939 4,330 1.03%
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2022 4 2023 3

WisdomTree
1
14 41,716,954.92 5,681 . . 0.02 3
(2019 12 31 ) »716,954. ’ '
15 51,483,153.55 7,011 0.01 1
(2020 12 31 ) ,483,153. ; '
16 46,338,829.86 6,311 . . 0.03 4
(021 12 31 ) »338,829. ’ '
2022 4 124,172 ,483.86 16,910 . . 0.02 4
5 122.850,122.60 16,730 , . 0.03 5
6 81,693,027.33 11,125 . . 0.02 3
7 112,996,789.80 15,388 . . 0.03 5
8 112,451 ,041.53 15,314 - - 0.04 5
9 78,007,003.59 10,623 . . 0.03 4
10 82,274,455.06 11,205 .03
11 86,603,399.63 11,794 .03
12 69,063,856.05 9,405 02
2023 1 78,967,267.59 10,754 01
2 130,674 ,639.62 17,796 01
3 127,322,677.69 17,339 01
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WisdomTree WTI

1
14
2019 12 31| 517,411,223.60 70,464 - - 9.01| 1,227
)
15
2020 12 31 |1,429,305,548.60 194,650 4.33 590
)
16
2021 12 31 (1,576,648,060.82 214,716 - - 7.15 974
)
2022 4 1,190,690,698.15 162,154 - - 10.32 | 1,406
5 1,211,801,966.58 165,029 - - 11.34 | 1,545
6 869,537,129.95 118,418 - - 10.68 | 1,455
7 777,070,219.65 105,825 - - 10.41 | 1,418
8 741,103,585.73 100,927 - - 9.74 | 1,327
9 642,962,821.86 87,562 - - 8.66 1,179
10 753,995,332.14 102,683 - - 9.54 | 1,299
11 788,120,797.40 107,330 - - 9.28 | 1,264
12 852,304,914.88 116,071 - - 9.25| 1,260
2023 1 821,499,113.58 111,876 - - 9.13 | 1,243
2 801,994,470.05 109,220 - - 8.90 | 1,212
3 697,326,616.94 94,965 - - 8.76 | 1,194
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WisdomTree
1
14
2019 12 31 4,328,887.37 590 - - 27.70 | 3,772
)
15
2020 12 31 5,869,534.43 799 18.94 | 2,579
)
16
2021 12 31 6,112,087.26 832 - - 31.80 | 4,331
)
2022 4 8,818,810.44 1,201 - - 47.31 6,443
5 11,485,670.70 1,564 - - 54.87 7,473
6 12,641,209.86 1,722 - - 52.02 7,084
7 11,305,442.73 1,540 - - 47.62 6,485
8 8,604,186.23 1,172 - - 41.70 | 5,680
9 6,116,382.83 833 - - 41.44 | 5,643
10 6,244,174.20 850 - - 46.59 6,345
11 7,321,600.07 997 - - 45.28 6,166
12 6,381,748.92 869 - - 46.51 6,334
2023 1 7,745,620.14 1,055 - - 48.29 6,576
2 7,428,316.76 1,012 - - 46.31 6,306
3 6,177,949.46 841 - - 47.24 | 6,434
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WisdomTree
1
14
2019 12 31| 274,268,665.45 37,351 - - 23.78 3,238
15 )
2020 12 31| 369,856,208.67 50,369 25.92 | 3,530
16 )
2021 12 31| 98,688,480.97 13,440 - - 4.23 576
)
2022 4 98,688,480.97 13,440 - - 4.23 575
5 87,951,551.93 11,978 - - 3.84 523
6 42,174,978.61 5,744 - - 3.37 458
7 56,374,200.99 7,677 - - 3.45 469
8 48,552,124.31 6,612 - - 3.27 445
9 41,673,109.56 5,675 - - 2.98 406
10 111,829,763.56 15,230 - - 3.07 418
11 147,174,022.08 20,043 - - 3.41 464
12 141,777,850.58 19,308 - - 3.26 444
2023 1 188,441,218.55 25,663 - - 3.62 493
2 166,667,803.93 22,698 - - 3.23 441
3 171,233,101.15 23,319 - - 3.28 446
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WisdomTree
1
14
2019 12 31| 222,654,211.79 30,322 - - 25.78 | 3,511
15 )
2020 12 31| 338,663,887.58 46,121 31.46 | 4,284
16 )
2021 12 31| 535,479,323.88 72,924 - - 39.55 | 5,386
)
2022 4 633,360,238.06 86,254 - - 38.80 | 5,284
5 523,689,255.07 71,319 - - 37.79 | 5,146
6 358,023,278.42 48,757 - - 32.54 | 4,431
7 347,854,300.45 47,373 - - 31.35 4,269
8 385,881,944.37 52,551 - - 30.79 | 4,193
9 343,411,056.73 46,767 - - 29.90 | 4,072
10 352,338,125.95 47,983 - - 29.61| 4,033
11 447,763,301.87 60,979 - - 32.93 | 4,485
12 495,520,927.79 67,483 - - 33.64 | 4,582
2022 1 880,938,096.03 119,971 - - 37.40 | 5,094
2 1,669,951,479.85 227,422 - - 36.17 | 4,925
3 1,671,847,512.43 227,681 - - 36.27 | 4,939
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WisdomTree
1
14
2019 12 31| 472,683,035.19 64,372 - - 13.54 1,844
)
15
2020 12 31| 459,116,443.33 62,525 15.62 2,127
)
16
2021 12 31| 205,137,570.76 27,937 - - 19.35 2,635
)
2022 4 285,589,583.19 38,893 - - 29.78 | 4,056
5 221,559,909.35 30,173 - - 26.58 | 3,620
6 144,423,788.78 19,668 - - 21.22 2,890
7 150,496,901.85 20,495 - - 22.07 | 3,006
8 137,989,810.76 18,792 - - 19.98 2,721
9 135,639,060.80 18,472 - - 19.68 2,680
10 139,743,383.58 19,031 - - 20.30 | 2,765
11 188,543,623.13 25,677 - - 25.12 | 3,421
12 208,706,983.74 28,423 - - 27.93 | 3,803
2022 1 226,963,047.94 30,909 - - 28.18 | 3,838
2 187,574,610.41 25,545 - - 23.02 | 3,135
3 175,393,949.33 23,886 - - 22.10 | 3,010
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WisdomTree
1
14
2019 12 31 54,471,178.92 7,418 - - 0.66 90
)
15
2020 12 31 55,584,195.01 7,570 0.72 98
)
16
2021 12 31| 57,472,786.81 7,827 - - 0.81 110
)
2022 4 150,327,765.56 20,472 - - 1.10 149
5 164,833,076.30 22,448 - - 1.13 154
6 130,108,403.36 17,719 - - 0.91 123
7 122,964,202.33 16,746 - - 0.83 113
8 123,852,502.83 16,867 - - 0.83 114
9 132,142,001.44 17,996 - - 0.92 126
10 127,769,010.00 17,400 - - 0.89 121
11 111,228,923.75 15,148 - - 0.78 106
12 103,835,910.20 14,141 - - 0.78 106
2023 1 103,074,499.63 14,037 - - 0.75 102
2 97,136,849.07 13,229 - - 0.69 94
3 95,040,758.62 12,943 - - 0.68 92
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WisdomTree
1
14
2019 12 31| 25,966,788.88 3,536 - - 0.75 102
)
15
2020 12 31]31,939,043.74 4,350 0.84 114
)
16
2021 12 31| 26,406,986.75 3,596 - - 1.11 151
)
2022 4 58,861,763.39 8,016 - - 1.53 209
5 45,879,208.51 6,248 - - 1.42 193
6 39,079,205.68 5,322 - - 1.24 170
7 36,903,735.03 5,026 - - 1.22 166
8 39,267,972.63 5,348 - - 1.33 181
9 33,789,200.33 4,602 - - 1.35 184
10 31,753,365.43 4,324 - - 1.38 188
11 30,471,031.06 4,150 - - 1.32 180
12 30,416,875.62 4,142 - - 1.35 183
2023 1 26,585,047.51 3,620 - - 1.35 184
2 24.,719,105.64 3,366 - - 1.26 172
3 27,748,137.40 3,779 - - 1.32 180
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WisdomTree
1
14
2019 12 31| 9,447,680.79 1,287 - - 17.40 | 2,370
)
15
2020 12 31|11,084,714.41 1,510 22.75 | 3,098
)
16
2021 12 31 |14,184,726.27 1,932 - - 24.38 | 3,320
)
2022 4 22,037,913.61 3,001 - - 30.80 | 4,194
5 21,698,493.40 2,955 - - 30.75| 4,188
6 19,716,290.17 2,685 - - 29.67 | 4,040
7 20,286,046.90 2,763 - - 29.89 | 4,070
8 18,516,698.92 2,522 - - 28.98 | 3,946
9 16,115,225.54 2,195 - - 27.83 | 3,790
10 17,166,687.46 2,338 - - 28.76 | 3,917
11 17,683,405.06 2,408 - - 29.83 | 4,063
12 17,227,567.94 2,346 - - 30.91| 4,210
2023 1 16,157,681.70 2,200 - - 31.27 | 4,258
2 15,266,315.33 2,079 - - 30.28 | 4,124
3 15,161,435.58 2,065 - - 30.87 | 4,204
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WisdomTree
1
14
2019 12 31 69,861,972.21 9,514 - - 3.71 505
)
15
2020 12 31 23,004,894.85 3,133 2.17 296
)
16
2021 12 31| 151,331,369.47 20,609 - - 10.20 1,389
)
2022 4 199,062,095.97 27,109 - - 13.30 1,811
5 198,988,057.55 27,099 - - 13.49 1,838
6 173,870,223.77 23,679 - - 12.06 1,642
7 162,515,412.96 22,132 - - 12.51 1,704
8 157,431,050.06 21,440 - - 12.48 1,700
9 136,556,125.48 18,597 - - 11.45 1,560
10 135,480,459.64 18,450 - - 11.73 1,597
11 138,920,859.61 18,919 - - 11.99 1,632
12 131,082,956.15 17,852 - - 11.69 1,593
2023 1 133,277,418.97 18,150 - - 11.61 1,581
2 127,833,998.29 17,409 - - 11.05 1,505
3 119,442,009.16 16,266 - - 11.02 1,501
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WisdomTree
1
14
2019 12 31 25,645,526.10 3,493 - - 2.99 407
)
15
2020 12 31| 47,638,407.14 6,488 3.53 481
)
16
2021 12 31 75,787,859.46 10,321 - - 3.29 448
)
2022 4 149,602,116.81 20,374 - - 5.48 746
5 153,535,629.82 20,909 - - 6.04 822
6 140,539,571.02 19,139 - - 5.21 709
7 134,310,312.16 18,291 - - 5.76 785
8 132,561,158.89 18,053 - - 5.77 786
9 106,984,829.02 14,570 - - 4.85 661
10 111,654,263.72 15,206 - - 5.11 697
11 103,809,827.42 14,137 - - 5.04 686
12 70,224,245 .64 9,563 - - 4.49 611
2023 1 62,577,624.38 8,522 - - 4.07 555
2 69,765,824.42 9,501 - - 3.93 536
3 58,483,460.50 7,965 - - 3.66 498
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WisdomTree
1
14
2019 12 31 27,313,278.89 3,720 - - 2.80 381
)
15
2020 12 31| 32,195,032.00 4,384 2.16 294
)
16
2021 12 31| 680,230,680.99 92,637 - - 16.86 2,296
)
2022 4 906,702,229.73 123,479 - - 19.30 | 2,628
5 791,994,780.46 107,858 - - 18.03 2,455
6 599,309,648.64 81,617 - - 15.12 2,060
7 583,101,654.65 79,410 - - 15.35 2,091
8 564,850,916.86 76,924 - - 14.92 2,033
9 511,363,378.06 69,640 - - 13.96 1,901
10 494 ,963,621.65 67,407 - - 13.85 1,886
11 587,629,439.17 80,026 - - 15.84 | 2,157
12 611,423,256.86 83,267 - - 16.17 2,202
2023 1 686,060,779.19 93,431 - - 17.46 2,378
2 640,034,349.16 87,163 - - 15.85 2,158
3 634,513,450.40 86,411 - - 15.75 2,145
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WisdomTree
1
14
2019 12 31| 441,933,848.56 60,185 - - 8.33 1,134
)
15
2020 12 31| 247,360,516.08 33,687 8.14 1,109
)
16
2021 12 31| 230,006,874.56 31,323 - - 5.90 803
)
2021 4 428,979,207.13 58,421 - - 7.45 1,014
5 528,071,849.45 71,915 - - 7.29 993
6 437,791,387.24 59,621 - - 6.63 902
7 304,535,084.94 41,473 - - 6.49 884
8 328,893,398.17 44,790 - - 6.71 914
9 335,898,753.51 45,744 - - 6.57 895
10 332,305,933.69 45,255 - - 6.64 904
11 322,978,131.46 43,985 - - 6.63 903
12 324,325,705.15 44,168 - - 6.73 916
2022 1 303,332,283.03 41,309 - - 6.88 937
2 303,361,740.58 41,313 - - 6.66 906
3 297,513,959.72 40,517 - - 6.71 914
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WisdomTree
1
14
2019 12 31 76,817,635.33 10,461 - - 11.34 1,545
)
15
2020 12 31| 111,755,009.46 15,219 13.07 1,780
)
16
2021 12 31 33,403,535.02 4,549 - - 4.21 573
)
2022 4 43,443,820.29 5,916 - - 5.59 761
5 43,311,436.25 5,898 - - 5.50 749
6 38,138,269.94 5,194 - - 4.87 663
7 36,032,602.90 4,907 - - 4.73 644
8 34,703,324.09 4,726 - - 4.85 660
9 31,840,961.59 4,336 - - 4.93 671
10 34,168,582.97 4,653 - - 4.98 679
11 32,630,226.81 4,444 - - 4.83 658
12 31,793,938.86 3,454 - - 4.92 407
2022 1 28,211,524.67 3,842 - - 4.92 670
2 26,619,679.26 3,625 - - 4.65 633
3 26,913,397.79 3,665 - - 4.79 652
WisdomTree WisdomTree WTI WisdomTree WisdomTree
WisdomTree WisdomTree WisdomTree
WisdomTree WisdomTree WisdomTree
WisdomTree WisdomTree WisdomTree
WisdomTree 2006 9 27 2006 11 1

2007 2 15 NYSE 2006 12 15
2007 4 20 2010 3 19
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2022 1 1 2022 12 31
WisdomTree
2018 1 1 2018 12 31 1.30
2019 1 1 2019 12 31 37.89
2020 1 1 2020 12 31 -42 .56
2021 1 1 2021 12 31 -41.11
2022 1 1 2022 12 31 17.51
100x (a b) b
a
b
WisdomTree WTI
2018 1 1 2018 12 31 21.40
2019 1 1 2019 12 31 33.06
2020 1 1 2020 12 31 -51.91
2021 1 1 2021 12 31 -16.03
2022 1 1 2022 12 31 29.33
WisdomTree
2018 1 1 2018 12 31 29.11
2019 1 1 2019 12 31 43.00
2020 1 1 2020 12 31 -31.63
2021 1 1 2021 12 31 23.83
2022 1 1 2022 12 31 46.26
WisdomTree
2018 1 1 2018 12 31 17.89
2019 1 1 2019 12 31 4.78
2020 1 1 2020 12 31 2.79
2021 1 1 2021 12 31 40.76
2022 1 1 2022 12 31 -16.46

WisdomTree
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2018 1 1 2018 12 31 22.17
2019 1 1 2019 12 31 6.16
2020 1 1 2020 12 31 22.02
2021 1 1 2021 12 31 57.68
2022 1 1 2022 12 31 -14.93
WisdomTree
2018 1 1 2018 12 31 17.38
2019 1 1 2019 12 31 31.20
2020 1 1 2020 12 31 15.40
2021 1 1 2021 12 31 58.66
2022 1 1 2022 12 31 44 .31
WisdomTree
2018 1 1 2018 12 31 2.33
2019 1 1 2019 12 31 8.23
2020 1 1 2020 12 31 -98.83
2021 1 1 2021 12 31 29.13
2022 1 1 2022 12 31 -4.24
WisdomTree
2018 1 1 2018 12 31 5.70
2019 1 1 2019 12 31 -6.19
2020 1 1 2020 12 31 11.74
2021 1 1 2021 12 31 30.27
2022 1 1 2022 12 31 21.00
WisdomTree
2018 1 1 2018 12 31 12.75
2019 1 1 2019 12 31 1.59
2020 1 1 2020 12 31 30.76
2021 1 1 2021 12 31 41.16
2022 1 1 2022 12 31 26.79
WisdomTree
2018 1 1 2018 12 31 12.76
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2019 1 1 2019 12 31 7.00
2020 1 1 2020 12 31 -2.33
2021 1 1 2021 12 31 25.27
2022 1 1 2022 12 31 14.65
WisdomTree
2018 1 1 2018 12 31 14.63
2019 1 1 2019 12 31 12.02
2020 1 1 2020 12 31 -41.55
2021 1 1 2021 12 31 -9.61
2022 1 1 2022 12 31 36.36
WisdomTree
2018 1 1 2018 12 31 20.40
2019 1 1 2019 12 31 5.72
2020 1 1 2020 12 31 15.21
2021 1 1 2021 12 31 50.90
2022 1 1 2022 12 31 -4.10
WisdomTree
2018 1 1 2018 12 31 11.88
2019 1 1 2019 12 31 0.59
2020 1 1 2020 12 31 15.10
2021 1 1 2021 12 31 43.29
2022 1 1 2022 12 31 14.04
WisdomTree
2018 1 1 2018 12 31 6.60
2019 1 1 2019 12 31 2.07
2020 1 1 2020 12 31 18.03
2021 1 1 2021 12 31 35.70
2022 1 1 2022 12 31 17.03
a.
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1 30
1974
the United States Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974
1986 United States Internal Revenue Code of
qualified purchaser
ERISA 3 3 ERISA 4 1 B

4975

29 2510.3-101 ERISA 3 42
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1991 Companies Jersey Law 1991
2005 8 16
2006 9 15 2006 9 15
90959 2006 6 15
2019 9
26
Steven Ross —
G ManJder
2001 2006
Cl LLP
2012 3 2017 1
M ManJer
2018 1
CEO
2008 1
2017 12 2011 3 2017 12
2007 4 2011 3

1991
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2007
1982
N
Christopher Foulds —
IV ManJer
Deloitte LLP
(FCA)
Deloitte LLP
ManJer
2020 3 R&H Fund Services (Jersey) Limited
CoinShares (Jersey) Limited
Bryan Governey —
2014 9 WisdomTree 2016 11
WisdomTree
2012 2014
2010 2012
2010

)
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1988
Collective Investment Funds (Jersey) Law 1947
Control of Borrowing (Jersey) Law 2
Jersey Financial Services Commission
15

a.
Collective Investment Funds (Jersey) Law 1988 3
3 3
50
1
b.
8 1
8 B
certificate
8 2 1
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8A
€))
(b)
(©)
©)
1991
1998

1996

8A

8B
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©) 8A

Q)

(@) 13
88 10

8B 7

8B 13

AlF
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2012 -
Collective Investment Funds (Certified Funds — Prospectuses) (Jersey) Order 2012

1958 Control of Borrowing (Jersey) Order
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18
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1988
c.

14
d.
A.

4

21
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CME

2.5

(

20

)

14

(

)

R

60
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MLI 2017 10 24 10

11 12 31
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21
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plc
plc

10

14
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WisdomTree Management Jersey Limited

2022 12 31 2,250,000 384,601,500

WisdomTree Foreign Exchange Limited
WisdomTree Metal Securities Limited
Gold Bullion Securities Limited
WisdomTree Hedged Metal Securities Limited
WisdomTree Hedged
Commodity Securities Limited
WisdomTree Issuer X Limited

Q)

24
14
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2022 12 31
JE4 8PW 300,000 100%
31
Bryan Governey —
1 2
Peter Jiemba —
1 2
Steven Ross —
1 2
Hilary Jones —
1993 15
Northern Bank 1999
R&H Fund Servies
Jersey Limited 2009 2019
1993 1999

Lloyds Private Bank and Trust Company
Barclays Private Bank and Trust Company
relationship manager
40

2020 4
ManJer

2023 3 31
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2005 8 16 70,884,909
9,653
2
2009 7 1 (748,719)
102
2011 11 11| 644,030 88
2011 6 6 (7,322,170) 997
WisdomTree 2007 2 22 (32,007,426) 4,359
2004 3 17 | 18,122,814 2.468
2019 9 17 873,365
119
1 2023 3 31
2
a. The Law Debenture
Trust Corporation p.l.c.
5,000,000 854,670,000 2022 12 31
100
b. R&H Fund

Services (Jersey) Limited
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2,425,000 414,514,950 2022 12 31

1998 11
29

Computershare Investor Services (Jersey) Limited

25,000 4,273,350 2022 12 31

JE1 1ES

The Law Debenture
Trust Corporation p.l.c.

R&H Fund
Services (Jersey) Limited

Computershare Investor Services (Jersey) Limited
2012 12 14

99/216



EDINETOOOO
O000oO00oooooo00o0O00ooo0oboOo0oOoOE23770)
OOoooooooooooOooao

100/216



EDINETOOOO
O000oO00oooooo00o0O00ooo0oboOo0oOoOE23770)
OOoooooooooooOooao

2021 2022 12
31 2021 2022 12 31
131
a. 23 103
b.
5 4 29 0
2023 4 28 4

1 136.185 1 170.934
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20

20

42

42

12 31
2022 2021

7  5,526,745,526 752,659,839 5,026,725,552 684,564,619
7 23,143,956 3,151,860 37,414,879 5,095,345
g 15,924,251 2,168,644 5,922,436 806,547
6 4,572,545 622,712 4,391,640 598,075
5,570,386,278 758,603,055 5,074,454,507 691,064,587

8 5,455,860,617 743,006,378 5,020,433,919 683,707,793
8 23,143,956 3,151,860 37,414,879 5,095,345
7 15,924,251 2,168,644 5,922,436 806,547
9 4,572,543 622,712 4,391,638 598,075
5,476,492,551 745,816,138 5,068,162,872 690,207,761

10 2 0 2 0
70,884,909 9,653,461 6,291,633 856,826
70,884,911 9,653,462 6,291,635 856,826
5,570,386,278 758,603,055 5,074,454,507 691,064,587

2023 4 19
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12 31
2022 2021
29,769,450 4,054,153 29,256,988 3,984,363
(29,769, 450) (4,054,153) (29,256,988) (3,984,363)
856,233,519 116,606,162 1,711,943,829 233,141,070
(791,640,243)  (107,809,526)  (1,737,446,961)  (236,614,214)
64,593,276 8,796,635 (25,503,132) (3,473,144)
GAAP
15
«
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2021 1 1 2 0 - - 31,794,765 4,329,970 31,794,767 4,329,970
- - (25,503,132) (3,473,144) - - (25,503,132) (3,473,144)

15 - - 25,503,132 3,473,144 (25,503,132) (3,473,144) - -

2021 12 31 3 2 0 - - 6,291,633 856,826 6,291,635 856,826
2022 1 1 2 0 - - 6,291,633 856,826 6,291,635 856,826
- - 64,593,276 8,796,635 - - 64,593,276 8,796,635

15 - - (64,593,276) (8,796,635) 64,593,276 8,796,635 - -

2022 12 31 3 2 0 - - 70,884,909 9,653,461 70,884,911 9,653,462

GAAP 15

20 42
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12 31
2022 2021
( )Y/ 64,593,276 8,796,635 (25,503,132) (3,473,144)
(856,233,519) (116,606,162)  (1,711,943,829)  (233,141,070)
791,640,243 107,809,526 1,737,446,961 236,614,214
8
ManJer
ManJer
ManJer
ManJer
ManJer 2022 6 30
ManJer 2022 6 30
ManJer
20 42
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Ordnance House, 31 Pier Road, St. Helier,
Jersey, JE4 8PW

15
12
15

Qa

Q@
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ManJer
) ManJer

ManJer
ManJer

1ASB
IFRS 1ASB

2022 12 31

IFRS 12

IFRS

15
GAAP
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(a

b

IFRS 3
IFRS 4
IFRS 16
IAS 37
IFRS

IFRS 17
IAS 8

)
IAS 12
IAS
IFRS 16
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ManJer

IFRS

(2023 1 1

(2023 1 1
(024 1 1
(2024 1 1

108/216

ManJer

IFRS

IFRS

)
(2023 1 1

OOoooooooooooOooao

2024 4



EDINETOOOO
O000oO00oooooo00o0O00ooo0oboOo0oOoOE23770)
OOoooooooooooOooao

IFRS 9
IFRS 9

L.P. L.P.

IFRS 13
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1)
ManJer
0.49
0.35
0.98%
0.05
ii)
2022 6 30
ManJer 2022 6 30
ManJer
2022 6 30
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IFRS 8

CODM
CODM

CODM

2
10
5
12 31
2022 2021
25,658,170 3,494,258 26,170,067 3,563,971
2,425,255 330,283 2,415,050 328,894
1,686,025 229,611 671,871 91,499
29,769,450 4,054,153 29,256,988 3,984,363
(29,769, 450) (4,054,153) (29,256,988) (3,984,363)
(29,769,450) (4,054,153) (29,256,988) (3.984,363)
2021 39,300 ManJer
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2022 12 31
21,040,820 4,617,350 25,658,170
2,189,690 235,565 2,425,255
1,252,710 433,315 1,686,025
24,483,220 5,286,230 29,769,450
(24,483,220) (5,286,230) (29,769, 450)
2022 12 31
2,865,444 628,814 3,494,258
298,203 32,080 330,283
170,600 59,011 229,611
3,334,247 719,905 4,054,153
(3,334, 247) (719,905) (4,054,153)
2021 12 31
20,980,651 5,189,415 26,170,066
2,150,284 264,766 2,415,050
339,718 332,154 671,872
23,470,653 5,786,335 29,256,988
(23,470, 653) (5.786,335) (29,256,988)
2021 12 31
2,857,250 706,720 3,563,970
292,836 36,057 328,894
46,264 45,234 91,499
3,196,351 788,012 3,984,363
(3,196,351) (788,012) (3,984,363)
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7 8
12 31
2022 2021
3,827,326 521,224 3,895,807 530,550
745,217 101,487 495,831 67,525
2 0 2 0
4,572,545 622,712 4,391,640 598,075
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12
7.
2022 12 31
712,282,182 97,002,149 5,078,313,786 691,590,163
143,951,337 19,604,013 448,431,740 61,069,677
856,233,519 116,606,162 5,526,745,526 752,659,839
2021 12 31
1,358,869,946 185,057,704 4,335,628,285 590,447,538
353,073,883 48,083,367 691,097,267 94,117,081
1,711,943,829 233,141,070 5,026,725,552 684,564,619
2022 12 31
23,143,956 2021 : 37,414,879
15,924,251 2021 : 5,922,436
12 31
2022 2021
5,026,725,552 684,564,619 4,218,667,859 574,519,282
8,032,128,256 1,093,855,387 8,706,986,820 1,185,761,000

(8,360,258,376)  (1,138,541,787) (9,582,287,840)  (1,304,963,869)

(28,083,425) (3.824,541) (28,585,116) (3,892,864)
856,233,519 116,606,162  1,711,943,829 233,141,070
5,526,745,526 752,659,839  5,026,725,552 684,564,619
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NAV

(654,512,154) (89,134,738)  5,014,887,918 682,952,511
(137,128,089) (18,674,789) 440,972,699 60,053,867
(791,640,243)  (107,809,526)  5,455,860,617 743,006,378
(1,380,682,693) (188,028,273)  4,331,946,185 589,946,091
(356,764,268) (48,585,942) 688,487,734 93,761,702
(1,737,446,961)  (236,614,214)  5,020,433,919 683,707,793
(712,282,182) (97,002,149)  5,078,313,786 691,590,163
(143,951, 337) (19,604,013) 448,431,740 61,069,677
(856,233,519) (116,606,162)  5,526,745,526 752,659,839
(1,358,869,946) (185,057,704)  4,335,628,285 590,447,538
(353,073,883) (48,083,367) 691,097,267 94,117,081
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2022 12 31
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(1,711,943,829)  (233,141,070)

5,026,725,552 684,564,619

116/216

15
15,924,251 2021 1 5,922,436
23,143,956 2021 1 37,414,879
12 31
2022 2021
5,020,433,919 683,707,793 4,186,873,094 570,189,312
5,020,433,919 683,707,793 8,706,986,820 1,185,761,000
(8,360,258,376) (1,138,541,787)  (9,582,287,840) (1,304,963,869)
(28,083,425) (3,824,541) (28,585,116) (3.892,864)
791,640,243 107,809,526 1,737,446,961 236,614,214
5,455,860,617 743,006,378 5,020,433,919 683,707,793
12 31
2022 2021
4,572,543 622,712 4,391,638 598,075
ManJer 12
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10.
12 31
2022 2021
2 1 1
2 0 2 0
1 1
HoldCo
)
11.
ManJer
12 31
2022 2021
ManJer 29,769,450 4,054,153 29,256,988 3,984,363
ManJer
12 31
2022 2021
ManJer 4,572,543 622,712 4,391,636 598,075
2022 12 31 ManJer 2 2021 2
ManJer
( R&H )
2022 7 1
R&H R&H
R&H R&H
ManJer ManJer R&H 214,233GBP 2021
411,651GBP 2021 107,116GBP
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45 55 2021 51
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2022 9 19

CREST
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A+ 2021 A+
AA 2021 AA 2022 9 19
COVID-19

ManJer
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ManJer

IFRS 13
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15
CcovID-19
COVID-19
2022 2 24
2022 3 7 3
3NIS 2022 3 7
2022 3 7 3NIS
2022 3 7
3NIS 3NIS
3NIS 3NIS
2022 3 7 2022 3 21 3
3NIL
2022 3 21
2022 3 22 3NIL
2022 3 22
3NIL
3NIL 3NIL 3NIL

3NIS 3NIL

-~
-~
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NAV
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1
2
5
12 31 1
3,466,895
2021 2,181,420
13.
IFRS
14.
2023 4
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12 31
2022 2021
(5,443,574,868) (741,333,243)  (5,016,967,024)  (683,235,654)
(12,285,749) (1,673,135) (3.466,895) (472,139)
5,526,745,526 752,659,839 5,026,725,552 684,564,619
5,514,459,777 750,986,705 5,023,258,657 684,092,480
1 2 2022
2 12,285,749 2021
2 1 3,466,895
HoldCo
HoldCo
2023 4 19 2023 4 20
ER

2022 12 31
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15. GAAP
7 8
12 31
2022 2021
856,233,519 116,606,162  1,711,943,829 233,141,070
(791,640,244) (107,809,527)  (1,737,446,961) (236,614,214)
64,593,275 8,796,635 (25,503,132) (3,473,144)
GAAP
(a GAAP
12 31
2022 2021

125/216



EDINETOOOO

O000oO00oooooo00o0O00ooo0oboOo0oOoOE23770)

OOoooooooooooOooao

29,769,450 4,054,153 29,256,988 3,984,363
(29,769, 450) (4,054,153) (29,256,988) (3,984,363)
856,233,519 116,606,162 1,711,943,829 233,141,070

(791,640,243) (107,809,526)  (1,737,446,961)  (236,614,214)

64,593,276 8,796,635 (25,503,132) (3,473,144)

(64,593,276) (8,796,635) 25,503,132 3,473,144
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() GAAP
4

2021 1 1 2 0 - - 31,794,765 4,329,970 31,794,767 4,329,970 2 0
- - (25,503,132) (3,473,144) - - (25,503,132) (3.473,144) (25,503,132) (3.473,144)
- - 25,503,132 3,473,144 (25,503,132) (3,473,144) - - - -
- - - - - - - - 25,503,132 3,473,144

2021 12 31 2 0 - - 6,291,633 856,826 6,291,635 856,826 2 0

2022 1 1 2 0 - - 6,292,633 856,826 6,291,635 856,826 2 0
- - 64,593,276 8,796,635 - - 64,593,276 8,796,635 64,593,276 8,796,635
- - (64,593,276) (8,796,635) 64,593,276 8,796,635 - - - -
- - - - - - - - (64,593,276) (8,796,635)

2022 12 31 2 0 - - 70,884,909 9,653,461 70,884,911 9,653,462 2 0

4
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WisdomTree Commeodity Securities Limited

Statement of Financial Position WISDOMTRES

As at 31 December

2022 2024

Notes usD uso
Assets
Commeodity Contracts 7 5.526,745 526 5.026,725552
Amounts Receivable on Commaodity Contracts
Awaiting Settlement 7 23,143 856 a7 414,879
Amounts Receivable on Commodity Secunbies
Awailing Settlement & 15,924,251 5822436
Trade and Other Rece vables & 4572545 4,301,840
Total Assets 5 570,386,278 5,074,454 507
Liabilities
Commedity Securities B 5455860617 5020433918
Amounts Payable on Commodity Secunties Awaiting
Settlement B 23,143,856 37,414,879
Amounts Payable on Commeodity Contracts Awaiting
Settlernent T 15,924,251 5022435
Trade and Cther Payables g 4,572,543 4,391 638
Total Liabilities 5,476,492,551 5,068,162,872
Equity
Stated Capital 10 2 2
Revaluation Reserve 70,884,000 6,291,633
Total Equity 70,884,911 6,281,633
Total Equity and Liabilities 5 570,386,278 5,074,454 507

The assets and liabilities in the above Statement of Financial Pesition are presented in order of liquidity fom
most to least liquid.

The financial statements on pages 20 1o 42 were approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors
and signed on its behalf on 19 April 2023,

-g";: E g.r -} =

Christopher Foulds
Director

The notes on pages 24 to 42 form part of these financial statements

=2 - wanw wisdomtree eu
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WisdomTree Commodity Securities Limited f@.

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income WISDOMIREE

Year ended 31 December

2022 2021

B Naotes uso usp

Income i 29,768.450 28,256 D8R

Expenses a {28, 769.450) (28,256,988)

Result Before Fair Value Movements 3 . -
Change in Contractual and Fair Value of Commodity

Centracts 7 B856,233.519 1,711,843, 829

Change in Fair Value of Commodity Securities B (791,640, 243) {1,737, 446.961)

Profiti{Loss) for the Year'-# B4,583,278 (25,503,132)

The directors consider the Company’s activities as continuing.

" A non-stal ulery and non-GAAP Statement of Proft or Loss and Other Comprehenshve Income reflecting adusiments
repregenting the movement in the difference bebween the value of the Commaodity Contracts and the price of Commodity
Securities is sel oul in note 15,

< There are no Rems of Clher Comprenensive Income, therefore the ProfitsLoss) for the Year also represented the Tolal
Comprehansive Inceme for the Year.

The notes on pages 24 to 42 form part of these financial statements

= 10 - wanw wisdomtree eu
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e

Statement of Changes in Equity WSO
Stated Retained Revaluation
Capital Eamings Reserve
Hotes usp uso uso
Opening Balance at 1 January 2021 2 - 31,784,765 3,
Result and Total Comprehensive Income for the Year - 125,503,132) - (25,5
Transfer to Revaluation Reserve 15 = 25,503,132 (25,503.132)
Balance at 31 December 20217 F = 6,291,633 [F
Opening Balance at 1 January 2022 2 . 6,291,633 G,
Result and Total Comprehensive Income for the Year - fi4, 503 276 - g
Transfer to Revaluaton Resanve 15 - (B4 583,276) B4 593 276
Balance at 31 December 20227 2 = 70,884,909 ?ﬂ.II

P A mon-stalidary and non-GAAP Stalement of Changes in Equity refecling adjustments representing the diference betwben the value of Commodty Conlracts and th

Commodity Securties 5 sel oul in nole 15,

The notes on pages 24 to 42 form part of these financial statements

=33 -
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WisdomTree Commeodity Securities Limited

Statement of Cash Flows WISDOMTRES

Year ended 31 December

2022 2024
usp usp
Profiti{Loss) for the Year 64,593,276 125,503,132)
Mon-cash Reconciling ltems
Change in Contractual and Fair Value of Commodity
Contracts {B56,233.519) {1,711,843,829)
Change in Fair Value of Commodity Securities 791,640,243 1,737,445 961
Cash Generated from Operating Activities -
Met Movement in Cash and Cash Equivalents - -
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the
Y ear -
Met Movement in Cash and Cash Equivalents -

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year - -

Commadity Securities are issued through a direct transfer of cash from the Authorsed Participants to the
Commodity Contract Counterparties or redeemed by the direct transfer of cash by the Commodty Contract
Counterparties to the Authonsed Participants. As such the Company 15 mot a party 1o any cash tfransactions.
The creations and redemptions of Commodity Securties and creations and cancellations of Commodity
Contracts, which are non-cash ransactions for the Company, are disclosed in notes 7 and B respectively, in
the reconciliation of opening to closing Commodity Securities and Commadity Contracts.

The Company has entered inte a service agreement with WisdomTree Management Jersey Limited ("Man.Jer”
of the “Manages”), whereby ManJer is responsible for supplying or procuring the supply of all management
and administration services required by the Company (including marketing), as well as the payment of costs
refating to the ksting and issue of Commaodity Securkies. Im return for these services, the Company has an
obligation to remunerate Mander with an amount equal to the aggregate of the management fee, licence
allowance and the creation and redemption fees (the “ManJer Fee™). The management fee and licence
allowance are transferred directly to ManJer by the Commodity Contract Counterpart es under the tarms of the
Commaodity Contracts. Prior to 30 June 2022 ManJer received creation and redemption fees directly from the
Authorised Participants. Afer 30 June 2022 the creation and redemption fees are incuded and seftied
between the Authorised Participants and the Commaodity Contract Counterparties as part of each creation or
redemption, being transfered directly to ManJer by the Commodity Contract Counterparties on a monthly
basis. Accordingly, there are no cash flows through the Company.

The notes on pages 24 to 42 form part of these financial statements
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WisdomTree Commodity Securities Limited @5
Notes to the Financial Statements WISDOMTRES

1. General Information

WisdomTree Commodity Securnties Limited ithe “Company”) is a company incorporated and doemicied in
Jersey. The address of the registered office is Ordnance House, 31 Pier Road S1. Helier, Jersey, JE4 BPW.

The Company’s principal activity is the issue and Bsting of commodity secunties ("Commodity Securities™), The
Company's portfolio of Commedity Securities incluedes classic, lenger dated, short and leveraged Commodity
Secunties, Commadity Securities are undated secured limited recourse financial instruments designed to track
the price of commedity futures, and give investors an exposure similar to that which could be achieved by
managing a fully cash-collateralised position in mear-term fulures contracts, less applicable fees. However,
unlike managing a futures position, Commodity Secunties mvolve no need to roll from one futures contract to
another, no margin calls. and no other brokerage or cther costs in holding or rolling futures contracts (although
secwrity holders incur costs in holding Commodity Securities). Mo tradng or management of futures contracls
is required by the Company, Commeodity Securies allow investors to buy and sell their interest through the
trading of a security on the London Stock Exchange and any other exchange to which that secunty may be
admitted to trading from tme bo time.

Commodity Securities are backed by commodity contracts (*Commadity Contracts”™) with terms comesponding
to the terms of Commodity Securities. Each class of Commodity Security is issued under limited recourse
arangements whereby the holders have recourse only to the relevant Commodty Contracts held to support
the Commodity Securities and not to the Commodity Contracts of any other class of Commodty Security of to
the Company. The Company does not make gains from trading in the undertying Commodity Contracts, As
a result, (and with the exception of the impact of management fees and licence allowance), from a commercial
perspective gains and losses in respect of Commadty Contracts will akways be offset by a corresponding loss
of gain on the Commodity Securities and therefore commercially the Company does not retain any net gains
or losses or net nisk exposures. However, the difference in valuation between Commodity Conftracts and
Commodity Securities creates a mis-match between values reported within these financial statements. This
difference in valuation would be reversed on 3 subsequent redemption of the Commodity Securities and
cancellation of the corresponding Commedity Contracts. Further details are disclosed within the Accounting
Policies and in note 15, with additional information regarding the risks of the Company disdosed in note 12
Furthermore, the Company presents an adjusted Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income and an adusted Statement of Changes in Equity in note 15 of the financial statements to reflect the
gconamic results of the Company through the reversal of the difference in valuation betweesn Comimodity
Contracts and Commodity Securities given the gain or loss would be reversed on a subsequent redemption of
the Commodity Securities and transfer of the corresponding Commaodity Contracts, and therefore will not be
realised,

Exchange-traded products are not typlcally actively managed, are signiicantly lower in cost when compared
to actively managed mutual funds and are easily accessible to investors, Notrading or management of fulures
contracts is required of the Company because the Company has entered into arrangememts to acquire an
equivalent asset exposure represented by the Commodity Securities from third parties which fully hedges the
exposure ofthe Company.

The Company is entithed to:

{1} a management fee and a licence allowance which are calculated by applying a fixed percentage to
the Contractual Value of Commeodity Securities in issue on a daily basis (the "Management Fee and
Licence Allowance™); and

(2} apply creation and redemption fees on the issue and redemption of the Commodity Securities.

Mo creation or redemption fees are payable to the Company when investors trade in the Commodity Securities
o a listed market such as the Londan Stack Exchange.

The Company has entered into a service agreement with WisdomTree Management Jersey Limited ("Man.Jer”
or the "Manager”), whereby ManJer is responsible for supplying or procuring the supply of all management
and administration services required by the Company (including marketing), as well as the payment of costs
refating to the listing and ssuance of Commodity Securiies. In return for these services the Company has an
obligation to remunerate ManJer with an amount equal to the management fee, Bcence allowance and the
creation and redemption fees eamed (the *ManJer Fee™). As a result, the Company recognises a result before
fair value movements of nil for each peried,
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Hotes to the Financial Statements (Continued) WISDOMTRES

2. Accounting Policies
The main accounting palicies of the Company are described below.
Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs") as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB?), and interpretations issued by
the Intermational Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee of the 4S8, The financial statements have
been prepared wnder the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of certain financial assets
and fnancial liabdities held at fair value through profit or loss.

The Board has concluded specifically that climate change, including physical and transition risks, does not
have a material impact on the recognition and separate measurement considerations of the assels and
liabiities in these financial statements as at 31 December 2022,

This conclusion is based on the fact that assets are reported at fair value under IFRS, are short dated, and as
set out in note 12 are categorised as level 2 due to the use of cbservable, verifiable inputs, including use of
third party information sources within the agreed pricing formulae (set out in the Prospectus). The liabilities
are valued utilising listed market prices at the penod end. These observable inputs and market prices will
reflect wider market sentiment, which inherently includes market perspectives relating to the impact of cimate
change.

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with | FR Ss requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. [t also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Company's
accounting poicies. The Company makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assels and liakilities. Estimates are continually evaluated and based on historical experience and other factors,
inchuding expectations of fsture events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Significant Judgements

The key accounting judgement required to prepare these financial statements is in respect of the presentation
of non-statutary and non-GAAP adustments to the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income and the Statement of Changes in Equity, as disclosed in note 15,

Significant Estimates

The directors do not consider that any significant estimates have been applied in the preparation of these
financial statements.

Going Concern

The nature ofthe Company's business dictates that the cutstanding Commedity Securities may be redeemed
at any time by Authorised Participants and in certain circumstances by individual holders and also, in cedain
circumstances, may be compulsorily redeemed by the Company. As the redemption of Commodity Securities
will always coincide with the cancellation of an equal amount of Commadity Contracts, liguidity risk is mitigated
throwgh this process which is considered to mnimize exposure to ligquidity risk. All other expenses of the
Company are met by ManJer. The directors dosely monitor the financial position and perfarmance of ManJer,
its assets under management, and therefore its related revenue streams, in respect of fulfilling the cbligations
under the sevices agreement. The net reported position on balanee sheet, including in instances whese a
deficit is reported, is not considered to impact the geoing concern position of the Company as this position
results solely due to the unrealised gains or bosses on Commedity Contracts and Commodity Securities due
to the accounting measurement basis applied in accordance with IFR3. As Commedity Contracts are held to
support Commeodity Securities, any deficit or surplus reported on unrealised positions would be reversed on a
subsequent redemption of the Commodty Securiies and the related cancellation of Commadity Contracts. A
reported deficit is not considered indicative of any issues relating to solvency of the Company and the directors
are satisfied that any obligations arising in respect of the Caommedity Securities can be managed in accordance
with the terms of the applicable prospectus, The directors consider the operations of the Company to be
ongoing, with a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence until 30 April 2024, and accordingly these financial statements have been prepared on the going
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Hotes to the Financial Statements (Continued) WISDOMI REE

2. Accounting Policies {continued)
Accounting Standards
(2) Standards, amendments and imerpretations adopted in the year:

The following standards that have been revised, issued and became effective but are not considered
applicable to the Company:
+ Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations
Amendments to IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts
Amendments to IFRS 16 Leases
Amendments to AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilites and Contingent Assets
+« Annual Improvements to IFRS

There were no other new standards, amendments and interpretations adapted in the current year that
resulted in a significant effect on these financial statements,

{b) New and revised IFRSs in Issue but not yef effective:

The Company has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs that have been issuad but are not
yet effective;

+ IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023)

+ Amendments to [AS 8 Accounting Pdlicies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors (effective
for annual periods beginning on or atter 1 January 2023)

+« Amendments to LAS 12 Deferred Tax (effective for annual periods begnning on or after 1 January
2023

+ Amendments to AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements {effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2024)

+  Amendments to IFRS 16 Leases (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024)

The directors do not expect the adoption of the above standards, amendments and interpretations that
are in issue but not yet effectve will have a material impact on the fnancial statements of the Comgpany
in future periods.

Commodity Secunties and Commedity Contracts

il Issue and Redemplion

Each time a Commadity Security is issued or redeemed by the Company a correspanding number and
value of Commodity Contracts are created or cancelled with Citigroup Global Markets Limied
{“Citigroup” and Mesrill Lynch International ("Merrill Lynch™) (collectively the “Commedity Contract
Counterparties?. The Commodity Contracts represent the financial assets of the Company and the
Commodity Securities give rise to the financial lisbfliies. Upon initial recognition, the fair value is
recorded using the price calculated based on the formula set ot in the Prospectus, referred to as the
Contractual Value™ {see below).

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised and de-recognised on the transaction (frade) date.

i) Clazsification at fair value trough Profd or Loss
Each Commuodity Security and Commaodity Contract comprizes a financial instrumentwh ose redemption
or cancellation price s linked to the performance of the relevant commodity index adjusted by the
applicable fees and expenses.

The Commadity Contracts held are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss under
IFRS S and the Commodty Securities are classified as financial Babilities measured at fair value thraugh
profit or loss under IFRS 9 due to an embedded derivative. This also significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would othenwise arise from measuring assels or
liabilittes, or recognising the gains and losses on them, on different bases.
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Hotes to the Financial Statements (Continued) WISDOMTRES

2. Accounting Policies {continued)
Commaodity Securities and Commodity Contracts (continued)

iy Pricing

The Commodity Contracts are priced by reference to the value of the commaodity indices calculated and
published by Bloomberg L.P. or Bloomberg Finance L.P. (together “Bloomberg’) and a multiplier
caleulated by the Company and agreed with the Commodity Conftract Counterparties. The multiplier
takes into account the daily accrual of the Management Fee and Licence Allowance and swap spread
as well as the capital adjustment companent of the Commodity Security, and is the same across all
Commodity Secunties of the same type (i.e. all classic Commaodity Securities use the same multipber).
This price (the Contractual Value calculated based on the formula set out in the Prospectus) is
considered to be the fair value of the Commaodity Contracts.

IFRS 13 requires the Company to identify the principal market and to utilise the available price within
that principal market. The directors consider the stock exchanges where the Commodty Securities are
listed to be the principal market and as a result the fair value of the Commodty Securities is the on-
exchange price as quoted on the stock exchange demonstrating active trading with the highest trading
volure on each day that the price is obtained. The Commeodity Securities are priced using the latest
traded mid-market price on (or before) the Statement of Financial Position date,

Consequently, a difference arses between the value of Commodity Contracts (held to support the
Commodity Securities) and Commodity Securities (at market value) presented in the Statement of
Financial Pasition. This difference is reversed on a subsequent redemption of the Commoadity Securities
and cancefiation of the corresponding Commadity Contracts.

Commodity Contracts and Securities Awaiting Settlement

The issue and redemption of Commodity Securities, and the creation or cancellation of Commodity Contracts,
i& accounted for on the transaction date. The transaction will not settle until twro days afer the transaction
date. Where ransactions are awaiting setlernent at the year end, the value of the Commedity Contracts and
the Commodity Securities due to be seftled is separately disclosed within the relevant assets and liabilities on
the Statement of Financial Position. The fair value of these receivables and payables is considered equivalent
to their camying value,

Other Financial Assets and Liabilities

Other financal assets and liabilites are nen-derivative financlal assets and liabiities including trade and other
receivables and trade and other payables with a fixed payment amount and are not quoted in an active market,
After initial measurement the other financial assets and kakilities are subssquenty measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method less any allowance for expected credst losses (in respect of financial assets
only). The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amertised cost of an instrument and of
aliocating interest over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash ows (incuding all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the effectve interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) theough the expected life of the instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shoter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. Impairment fosses, including
reversals ofimpairment losses and impairment gains, are recorded through profit or loss.

Reserves

A revaluation reserve and a retained earnings reserve are maintained within equity. All profit or loss is laken
to the retained earnings reserve at the end of the accounting perod to which it relates and the gain of loss
refating to the mis-match of accounting values is transferred to the revaluation reserve, which the directors
have deemed to be non-distributable, as the balance relates to unrealised gains and losses on Commodity
Contracts (held to support the Commodity Securities) and Commaodity Securities, which will be reversed on a
subsequent redemption of the Commodity Securities and the related cancellation of Commodity Contracts and
will therefore not be realised.
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Hotes to the Financial Statements (Continued) WISDOMTRES

2. Accounting Policies {continued)
Income

The Company derives its income over time (in respect of management fees), and at a point in time (in respect
of creation and redemption fees) as follows:

i Management Fees and Licence Allowance

Management Fees and Licence Allowance are calculated by applying a fixed percentage to the

Contractual Value of Commodity Securities in issue in accordance with the terms of the securities ssued:

s classic and longer dated Commadity Securities have a management fee rate of 0.49% per annum,
with the exception of WisdomTree Carbon Secunties which has management fee rate of 0.35% per
annum;

+ short and leveraged Commodity Securities have a management fee rate of 0.28% per annum; and

+ ali Commodity Securities are subject to the licence allowance of 0.05% per annum,

The Management Fees and Licence Allowance are actrued and recognised on a daily basis and are
inwoiced on a monthly basis and settled directly between ManJder and the Comrmodity Contract
Counterparties.

#)  Creation and Redemplion Feas

Fees for the issue and redemplion of Commodity Securities are recognised at the fair value of the
consideration expected to be received, on the date on which the transaction becomes legally binding,
Prior to 30 June 2022, accrued creation and redemplion fees were invoiced on a quarterly basis and
seftled directly between ManJer and the relevant Authorised Pamticipants. ARer 30 June 2022 the creation
and redemption fees are included as part of each creation or redemplion and settled between the
Authorised Participants and the Commaodity Contract Counterparties, and transfered directly to Mander
by the Commuodity Contract Counterparties on a monthy basis.

Foreign Currency

The financial statements of the Company are presented in the currency inwhich the majority of the Commaadity
Securities issued by the Company are denominated (its functional currency). For the purpose of the financial
statements, the results and financial position of the Company are expressed in United States Dollars, which is
the functional currency of the Company, and the presentational currency of the financial statements.

Transactions in fof elgn currencies are itially recorded at the spot rate at the date of the transaction. Monetary
assets and liabilties denominated in foreign currencies at the year-end date are translated at rates ruling at
that date. Prior to 30 June 2022 creation and redemption fees were translated at the average rate for the
month in which they are incurred.The resulting differences are accounted for through profit or loss.

Segmental Reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Company that is engaged either in providing products or
senvices (business segment), of in providing products and services within a particular economic environment
(geographical segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are different fom those of other segments.
IFR S B regquires operating segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports about components of the
Company that are regularly reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM™ in order to allocate
resolurces to the segments and to assess their peformance. The CODM has been determined as the board
of deectors,

Whilst the Company has a number of different Commadty Securities in issue, the financial infermation
reviewed by the CODM is not segregated by those different Commodity Securities, but is segregated between
classic and longer dated Commodity Securities and short and leveraged Commodity Securities and therefore
the board of directors have concluded that these two components meet the crieria of operating segments.
Furthermore marketing of the Commodity Securities is undertaken on a centralised basis and the terms ofthe
Commodity Securities of any class rank pari passu in all respects imespective of stock exchange listing, In
addition, the Company has no single major customer from which greater than 10% ofincome s generated.

Therefore the Company discloses its results on an equivalent form on its operations for each of the Company's
business segments only. in note 5.
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Hotes to the Financial Statements (Continued) WISDOMI REE

3 Result Before Fair Value Movements
Result Bafore Fair Value Movements for the year comprised:

Year ended 31 December

2022 2021

UsD uspb
Management Fees 25,658,170 26,170,067
Licence Allowance 2425255 2415,050
Creation and Redemption Fees 1,686,025 671,8M
Total Income #5,768450 79 256,988
ManJer Fees (29, 769,450) (28 256 988)
Total Operating Expenses (29,769,450) (29,256,988)

Result Before Fair Value Movements - -

HAudit Fees for the year of GBP 43,079 will be met by ManJer (2021: GBP 38,300}

4.  Taxation

The Company is subject to Jersey Income Tax. During the year the Jersey Income Tax rate applicable to the
Company is Zero percent (2021: Zero percent).

5 Segmental Reporting

The Company has two operating segments; classic & longer dated and short & leveraged Commeodity
Securities in issue. The Company earns income from each of these sources.

For the year ended Classic & Short &
31 December 2022 Longer Dated Leveraged Total
usD usp usp
Management Fees 21,040,820 4,617,350 25 658 170
Licence Aliowance 2188 630 235565 2 425 755
Creation and Redemption Fees 1,252,710 433315 1,686,025
Total Income 24,483,220 5,286,230 29,760,450
Tetal Operating Expenses (24 483.2200 (52862300 (29768450

Segmental Result . - -
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5. Segmental Reporting (continued)
For the year ended Classic & Short &
31 December 2021: Longer Dated Leveraged Tatal
usD usD usD
Management Fees 20,980,651 5189415 25,170,066
Licence Allowance 2150284 264,766 2415050
Creation and Redemption Fees 339,718 332154 671,872
Total Income 23,470,653 5,706,335 29,256,988
Total Operating Expenses (23.470,653) (5,786,335 (29, 256,988)

Segmental Result

Addtional information relating to the assets and liabiliies associated with these Commadity Securities is

disclosed in notes 7 and B.

6. Trade and Other Receivables

Management Fee and Licence Allowance
Creation and Redemption Fees
Receivable from Related Party

As at 31 December

2022 2021
UsD usD
3,827,326 3,895,807
745,217 495,831

2 )
4,572,545 4,391,640

The fair value of these receivables is equal to the camying value. The Trade and Other Receivables are due

to be recovered within 12 months ofthe yvear end.

1. Commodity Contracts

31 December 2022

Classic & Longer Dated Commodity Contracts
Short & Leveraged Commodity Contracts

Total Commodity Contracts

31 December 2021

Classic & Longer Dated Commodity Confracts
Short & Leveraged Commodity Contracts

Total Commeodity Contracts

.30.
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Change in
Fair Value Fair Value
usD uso
712,282,182 5078 313,786
143,951,337 448,431,740
856,233,519 5,526,745, 526

Change in
Fair Value Fair Value
uso uso
1,358,869, 845 4,335,628, 285
353,073,883 691,097,267
1,711,843,829 5,026,725,552
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i. Commodity Contracts {continued)

As at 31 December 2022, there were certain Commodity Contracts awaiting settlement in respect of the
creation or redemption of Securities with transaction dates before the year end and settlement dates in the

following year:

+ The amount recervable on Commodity Contracts awaiting settlement is USD 23,143 856 (2021 USD

37.414,879).

+ The amount payable on Commodity Contracts awaiting seftlement is USD 15,924 251 (2021: USD

5,822 436).

The below reconciliation of changes in the Commadity Contracts includes only non-cash changes.

Year ended 31 December

2022 2021

UsD usp
Opening Commodity Contracts 5,026,725,552 4,218 667 859
Af:l:ﬁjms 8032,128.256 8,706,986.820
Disposals (B.360, 258 3786) (9,582,287 840
Management Fee and Licence Allowance (28,083 425) (28,585,118)
Change in Fair Value 856,233,518 1.711,843.829
Closing Commodity Contracts 5,526,745,526 5,026,725,552

8. Commodity Securities

Vihilst the Commgdity Securtties are quoted on the open market, the Company's ultimate liability relates to its
contractual obligations to issue and redeem Commodity Securities at set prices on each trading day. These
prices are based on agreed formulae, and are equal to the published net asset values ("MAVT) of each class
of Commuodity Security. Therefore, the actual contractual issue and redemiption of Commodity Securities accur
at a price that corresponds to the fair value ofthe Commodity Contracts. As a result, the Company has no net
exposure to gains or losses on the Commaodity Secunties and Commaodity Contracts.

The Company measures the Commodity Securities at their fair value in accordance with IFRS 13 rather than
at the Contractual Walue {as described in the Prospectus). The fair value is the price quoted on stock
exchanges or ather markets where the Commodity Securities are listed or traded.

The fair values and changes thereof during the year based on prices available on the open market as
recognised in the financial statements are:

3 December 2022 Change in
Fair Value Fair Value
usD usp
Classic & Longer Dated Commodity Securities (654,512 154) 5014, 887 918
Short & Leveraged Commodity Securities {137,128,089) 440,972, 658
Total Commodity Securities (791,640,243) 5,455.860,617
31 December 2021 Change in
Fair Value Fair Value
usD usb
Classic & Longer Dated Commodity Securities (1,380,682 693) 4,331,946 185
Short & Leveraged Commodity Securities (356,764, 268) GEE 487 734
Total Commodity Securities {1,737 446,961) 5020433918
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3. Commodity Securities {continued)

The Contractual Values and changes thereof during the year based on the contractual settlement values are:

31 December 2022

Classic & Longer Dated Commodity Securities
Short & Leveraged Commaodity Secuwrities

Total Commodity Securities

31 December 2021

Classic & Longer Dated Commodity Securities
Short & Leveraged Commaodity Secwrities

Total Commadity Securities

Ch i

cngfu: Contractual
Value Value
uso uso
(T12,282,182) 5,078 313,786
(143,851,337 448 431,740
1856,233,519) 5,526,745,526

Chiange in
Contractual Contractual
Value Value
usD usp
(1.358 869, 546 4 335,628,285
(353,073,883) 691,087, 267
{1,711,943,82% 5,026,725552

The gain o loss on the diference between the value of the Commodity Confracts and the fair value of
Commaodity Securities would be reversed on a subsequent redemption of the Commodity Securities and
cancellation of the corresponding Commedity Contracts. Refer to note 15 for the non-statutory and non-GAAP

adustments which reflect the results of this reversal.

As at 31 December 2022, there were certain Commadity Securities awaiting setifement in respect of creations
or redemptions with transaction dates before the year end and seftlement dates in the following year:
+ The ameount receivable on Commodity Securities awaiting settlernent is USD 15,924,251 (2021: USD

5,922 436),

+ The amount payable on Commedity Securiies awaiting settlement is 3D 23,143 956 (2021: USD

37,414,879,

The below reconciliation of changes in the Commeodity Securnties, being labilities arising from financing

activities, includes anly non-cash changes.

Opening Commodity Securities
Securities Created

Securities Redeemed

Management Fee and Licence Allowance
Change in fair value

Closing Commuodity Securities at Fair Value
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Year ended 31 December

2022 2021

Uso usD
5,020,433,919 4,186,873,004
8,032, 128,256 8,706,986 820
(8,360,258 376) (8,582,287, 840)
(28,083.425) (28,585, 116)
791,640,243 1,737,446,961
5455 860,617 5,020,433,019
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8. Trade and Other Payables

Az at 31 December

2022 2024
usD usD
ManJer Fees Payable 4,572,543 4,391,638

The fair value of these payables is equal to the carrying value. The ManJer Fee Payable is due to be settied
within 12 months of the year end.

10.  Stated Capital

As at 31 December

2022 2021
usoD usoD
2 Shares of Nil Par Value, Issued at GBP 1 Each and Fully
Paid 2 2

The Company can issug an unlirmited capital of nil par value shares in accordance with its Memorandum of
Association.

Al Shares issued by the Company camry cne vote per Share without restriction and carry the right to dividends.
Al Shares are held by Wisdom Tree Holdings Jersey Limited ("HaldCao™).

11. Related Party Disclosures

Entities and individuals which have significant influence over the Company, ether through ownership or by
virtue ofbeing a director of the Company are considered to be related parties. In addition, entities with common
ownership to the Company and entities with common directors are also considered to be related parties.

Fees charged by ManJer during the year:

Year ended 31 December

2022 2021
usp uspD
Manlder Fees 2,769,450 29,256, 988

The folowing balances ware due to ManJer at year end:

As at 31 December

2022 2021
usp uso
ManJer Fees Payable 4,572,543 4,391,636

Ab 31 December 2022, USD 2 is receivable from Mander (2021; USD 2.

As disclosed in the Directors’ Report, ManJer paid fees to R&H Fund Services (Jersey) Limited ("REH" or the
“Administrator”) for administration services, which includes the provision of Directors, however following the
restructuring of the fee agreement effective from 1 July 2022, fees for those services are no longer separately
identified following the restructuring of the fee agreement effective from 1 July 2022,
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11. Related Party Disclosures (continued)

Steven Ross is a director of R&H and a partner of Rawlinson & Hunter, Jersey Partnership, which whally owns
R&H. Christopher Foulds is a director of R&EH. During the year, R&H charged ManJer administration fees,
which include the Cempany and cther entities for which ManJer is the Manager and R&H is the Administrater,
in aggregate, of GBP 214,233 (2021: GBP 411,651), of which GBP nil {2021: GBP 107,116) was culstanding
at the year end.

Peter Ziemba and Stuart Bell are executive officers of WisdomTree, Inc.

12 Financial Risk Management

The Company s exposed to a number of risks arising from its activities, including credt risk, settlement risk,
liquidity risk and market risk, The Board is responsible for the overall risk management approach and for
approving the risk management strategies and principles. The Board meets fequently to consider the risk
exposures ofthe Company and to determine appropriate management policies, The risk management policies
employed by the Company to manage these are discussed below.

The Commodity Securities are subject to normal market fluctuations and other risks inherent in nvesting in
secwities and other financial instruments. There can be no assurance that any appreciation in the value of
securities will occur, and the capital value of an investor's original investment is not guaranteed. The value of
investments may go down as well a5 up, and an investor may not get back the original amount invested.

The information provided below is not intended to be a comprehensive summary of all the msks associated
with the Commodity Securities and investors should refer to the most recent Prospectuses for a detailed
summary of the risks inherent in investing in the Commodity Securities. Any data provided should not be used
or interpreted as a basis for future forecast or investment performance,

{a) Credt Risk

Credit risk primarily refers to the risk that Authorised Participants or the Commodity Contract Counterparties
will default on their contractual sbligations resulting in financial loss. Each class of Commodity Security s
issued under Bmited recourse arrangements whereby the holders have recourse only to the relevant
Commodity Contracts (held to support the Commuodity Securties) and not to the Commodity Contracts of any
other class of Commodity Securities or to the Company, therefore imiting the credit risk of the Company in
connection with the issue of the Commodity Securities.

There are compulsory redemption provisions as outlined in the prospectus that can be triggered by the
Company o the Commodity Contract Counterparties in certain circumstances whereby a compulsory
redemption of all Commodity Securities in issue would be undertaken, Furthermore, there are restrike
mechanisms in certain classes of short and leveraged products that force a re-set ofthe price where there are
large swings in the relevant index during a trading day, or which may tigger a compulsory redemption of
Commodity Securities if the price of those Commodity Securities wasto fall to zero within a specified intra-day

pesiod.

The total carrying amounts ofthe amounts receivable awaiting setfement and trade and other receivables best
represent the maximum credit risk exposure at the Statement of Financial Position date. Afthe reporting date
the Company’s amounts receivable awaiting settlement and trade and other receivables are detailed on the
Staterment of Financial Position,

The value of Commodity Secunties and the ability of the Company to repay the redemplion price s dependent
on the receipt of such amount from the Commodity Confract Counterparties and may be affected by the credit
raling attached to each Commodity Contract Counterparty. Curmrently the Company has two Commodity
Contract Counterparties, Merrill Lynch and Citigroup, At the reporting date the exposure to the Commodity
Contract Counterparties was split approximately 45% and 55% (2021: 31% and 49%), respectively.

In the event that a Commodity Contract Counterparty was to default, the Company would only transact with
the non-defaulting Commodity Contract Counterparty. Furthermore, the Company could use the proceeds

resulting from the sale of the collateral (see below) to transact with the non-defaulting Commeodity Contract
Counterparty to replacing the affected Commodity Contracts where possible,
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12 Financial Risk Management [continued)
ja)  Credd Risk jcontinued)

To cover the credt risk under the Commodity Contracts, the Commedity Centract Counterparties are obliged
to place an amount of collateral, equal to or greater than the exposure, into a pledged account with a third
party custodian, being the Bank of New York Mellen ithe "Cellateral Custodian®). The level of collateral
deposited into the pledged account is assessed against on the total outstanding value of the Commodity
Contracts at the end of the previous trading day. The collateral held with the Collateral Custodian is held in
accounts in the names of the Commodity Contract Counterparties. In the event that a Commodity Contract
Counterparty defaults on s payment obligations, the Company is entitled to exercise control over the collateral
amounts placed in the pledged account.

The realised value of the collateral may differ from the amount owed by the Commodity Contract
Counterparties, as prices fluctuate intraday (i.e. from the last point the exposure and collateral were valued),
Our collateral schemes apply strict marging and concentration limits to reduse the risk of such a loss, but do
not completely remove it. The collateral pledged with the Collateral Custodian is re-assessed on a daily basis
to ensurethatthe value of the colfateral in the pledged account is sufficient relative to the Commaodity Contracts
oulstanding and to ensure that the eBgibility critesia for the collateral continues to be met on a daily basis.
Should the quality of the underlying coflateral change on any day, it is removed from the collateral account and
replaced with collateral that meets the existing criteria,

The Board monitors credit risk exposure, including through an assessment of the credit rating of the
Commodity Contract Counterparties (Citigroup: A+ (2021: A+) (Fitch, 19 September 2022 and Merrill Lynch:
AA(2021: AA) (Fitch, 19 September 2022)), in order to ensure the Company's exposure is managed, and has
continued to do so more closely with a focus en any potential impact of, or developments relating to both the
Ukraine Crisis and COVID-18.

bl Setflement Risk

Settlernent risk primarily refers to the nsk that an Authoised Pamticipant or the Commodity Contract
Counterparty will default on its contractual cbligations resulting in financial loss.

The directors believe that settlement risk would only be caused by the risk of the Company’s trading
counterparty not delivering cash, Commaodity Contracts or Commodity Securities on the seflement date. The
directors feel that this risk is mitigated as a result of the cash or Commodity Securities settiing through the
CREST system. The system ensures that the transaction does not sefttle until both parties have fulfilled their
contractual obligatiens.

Amounts outstanding in respect of positions yet to settle are disclosed innotes 7 and B,
fe)  Liquiddy Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its
financial lizbilkties as they fall due. The Company's receivables and payables are all payable on demand and
generally settled on a short-term basis. In addition, amounts in respect of the Management Fee, Licence
Allowance and creation and redemption fees are transferred from the relevant counterparties deectly to ManJder
and there are no cash fows through the Company.

The Commaodity Securities do not have a confractual maturity date and will only be redeemed at the request
of the holder of the security, which may be requested at any ime, or in the case of a compulsory redemgption.
Generally, only Authorised Participants can submit applhsations and redemptions directly with the Company.

Furthermore, liquidity risk of the Company is mitigated because the timing of redemptions of the Commodity
Securities and Commodity Contracts are matched, therefore the Company does not have to wait for a longer-
term contrack to mature in order to pay its debts to ex-security holders, Furthermore, while the agreaments
with the Commadity Contract Counterparties inchede limits (both daily and in the aggregate) on the issue and
cancellation of Commodty Contracts, the Company is not obliged to issue and redeem Commodity Securities
in excess of those limits under the terms of the security agreement. Consequently, the Company has not
presented any tabular information in respect of Bquidity risk.
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12 Financial Risk Management [continued)
{d)  Capital Managemeni

The primary objective of the Company's capital management pelicy is o ensure that it maintains sufficient
resources for operational purposes. The capital being managed is the Stated Capital as presented in the
Staternent of Changes in Equity. Retained Earnings and the Revaluation Reserve, as presented in the
Statement of Changes in Equity, are not considered managed capital as these balances relate to unrealised
gains and losses on Commodity Contracts (held to support the Commodity Securities) and Commodity
Securities, which are reversed on a subsequent redemption of the Commodity Securties and the related
cancellation of Commodity Contracts and will therefore not be realised. The Company is not subject to any
capital requirements imposed by a regulater and there were no changes in the Company's approach to capital
management during the year.

The Company’s principal activity is the issue and listing of Commodity Secunties, These Commodity Securities
are issued and redeemed as demand requires. The Comgany holds a corresponding number of Commodity
Contracts which matches the total liability of the Commodity Securities issued, ManJer supplies or arranges
for the supply of all management and administration services to the Company and pays all management and
administration costs of the Company. In return for these services the Company has an obligation te
remunerate Mander, which under the terms of the service agreement is equal to the aggregate of the
Management Fee, Licence Allowance and creation and redemption fees eamed.

As all Commodity Securities in issue are supported by an equivalent number of Commodity Contracts held
with the Commodity Contract Counterparties and the running costs of the Company are paid by Mander, the
directors of the Company consider the capital management and its current capital resources are adequate to
maintain the ongeing listing and issue of Commodity Securities.

{8)  Market Risk

Market rick is the risk that changes in market prices (such as index and equity prices, interest rates and foreign
exchange rates) will affect the Company’s inceme or the value of its financial instruments held or issued.

f)  Prce Risk

As described above, Commodity Securities provide investors with long or short exposure to the
performance of the relevant commadity index. The value of the Company’'s liability in respect of the
Commuodity Securities fluctuates according to the performance of the underlying commodity index and the
risk of such change in price is managed by the Company by entering into Commodity Contracts with the
Commodity Contract Counterparties which match the lability. Whilst the Commodity Securities are gquoted
on the open market the Company’s ultimate Eability relates to its confractual obligations to issue and
redeem Commodity Securities at set prices on each trading day. The Company measures the Commodity
Securities at their fair value in accordance with IFRS 13 rather than at the Contractual Value (as described
in the Prospectus). The gain or loss on the difference between the value of the Commadity Contracts and
the fair value of Commodity Securities would be reversed on a subsequent redemption of the Commadity
Securities and canceliation of the corresponding Commaodity Contracts. Refer to note B for the Rurther
details regarding fair values.

The Company therefore bears no residual financial risk on a contractual basis fom a change in the value
of a commedity, commodity index or currency by reference to the futures price. Furthermore, the impact
of price sensitivity is considered immateral to these financial statements,

However, there is an inherent risk from the point of view of investors as the values of commodities, and
thiss the value ofthe Commodity Securities, may vary widely due 1o, amongst othes things, changng supply
or demand for a particular commeodity, government and monetary policy orintervention, interest rate levels
and global or regional political, economic or financial events. The market price of Commodity Secwrities
is (and will remain} a function of supply and demand amongst investors wishing to buy and sell Commodity
Securities and the bid-offer spread that the market makers are willing to quote. This is highlighted further
in note 15, and below under the Fair Value Hierarchy.
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12 Financial Risk Management [continued)
(&) Market Risk (continued)
Caronavirus disease (COVID-19)

The Board continues to moniter the advice and developments relating to COVID-18. The WisdomTree group
has and continues to implernent measures to maintain the ongeing safety and well-being of employees, whilst
continuing to operate business as usual,

Ukraina [nvasion

On 24 February 2022, Russia engaged in military actions in the sovereign territory of Ukraine (the “Crisis™).
The Crisis has resulted in the implementation of sanctions and further actions by govemments which, as well
as the Crisis itself, have impacted financial and commedities markets.

As Russia s one of the world's major producers of Nickel, the Crisis has caused market turmoil which, inter
alka, resulted in substantial changes in the price of Mickel.

On 7 March 2022, the calculation agent determined that the intra-day price of the Commodity Contracts
backing the WisdomTree Mickel 3x Daily Short Securities ("3NIS") had fallen to or below zero during the day
of ¥ March 2022 Furthermore, the Company also received notice from the Commodity Contract
Counterparties that 7 March 2022 was determined to be a compulsory pricing date in respect of all of the
Commodity Contracts of the same class as 3NIS and that therefore all of such Commodty Contracts were
termanated on 7 March 2022 with no payments due to or from the Commodity Contract Counterparties, or fom
or ko the Company. As a result the Company released an annocuncement to the Stock Exchanges that 2MIS
was suspended from trading and further that 3MIS was automatically subject to a compulsory redemption. The
redempticn amount of 3N15 available for distribution to holders of 2MIS was calculated as zero,

Due to movements in Nicked prices since 7 March 2022 on 21 March 2022 the caleulation agent determined
that the intra-day price of the Commodity Contracts of the same class as the WisdomTree Nickel 3x Daily
Leveraged Securities ("3MIL") had fallen to or below zero during the day of 21 March 2022, Furthermore, the
Company also received notice from the Commadity Contract Counterparties that 22 March 2022 was
determined to be a compulsory pricing date in respect of all of the Commodity Confracts of the same class as
INIL and that therefore all of such Commaodity Contracts have been terminated on 22 March 2022 with no
payments due to or from the Commodity Contract Counterparties or from or to the Company, As a result, the
Company released an announcement to the Stock Exchanges that 3NIL was suspended from trading and
further that 3MIL was autornatically subject to a compulsory redemplion. The redemption ameunt of 3MIL
available for distribution to holders of 3NIL was calculated as zero.

As the Crisis continues, the Board also continues to closely monitor and assess the impact on the Company's
portfolio operations and valuation and will take any further actions needed or as required under the terms of
the applicable Prospectuses, as facts and circumstances are subject te change and may be specific to
investments and jurisdictions. Vhilst it is not currently possible to predict future market conditions and
therefore determine if any ferther action may be required on any other classes of Commedity Securities, the
action that may be required includes, but is not limited to, temporarily not accepting applications for Commodity
Securities, temporarily suspending Commodity Securities from trading on Stock Exchanges o a compulsory
redemption of Commodity Securities, Other than the actions cutlined above in respect of 3NIS and 3NIL, the
Company has not initiated any of thess further actions to date. Any such action will be undertaken in
accordance with the constitulive documents of the Commodity Securities. Furthermore, there are mechanisms
within the constitutive documents of the Commodity Securities that enable the Commodity Contract
Counterparties to request a compulsory redemplion in cerain circumstances as sel out and explained within
the Prospeciuses.
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12 Financial Risk Management [continued)
(&) Market Risk (continued)

H)  Interesi Rate Risk

The multiplier used in the pricing of the Commodty Contracts or the Commodity Securities takes into
account the incremental capital enhancement component of the Commodity Security, which includes the
impact of interest rates, This incremental capital enhancement component of the Commedity Contracts
and Commaodity Securities is attributable to the security holder. As a result, the Company does not have
significant exposure to interest rate risk.

i) Currency Risk

The directors do not consider the Company to have a significant exposure to currency risk ansing from the
current economic uncertainties facing a number of countries around the world as the gains or losses on
the liability represented by the Commodity Securities are matched economically by corresponding kosses
or gains attributable to the Commoadity Contracts.

M Sensiidy Analysis

IFRS 7 requires disclosure of a sensitivity analysis for each type of market risk to which the Company is
exposed to at the reporting date, showing how profit or loss and equity would have been affected by a
reasonably possible change to the relevant risk variable.

The Company's rights and liability in respect of Commeodity Secunties and Commodity Contracts, respectively,
refates to its contractual obligations to issue and redeem Commodity Securities at sel prices on each trading
day. The fair value of each creation and redemption of Commedity Securities is recorded using the price by
reference to the value of the commodity indices calculated and published by Bloomberg. Howewver, under
IFRS 13, the liability is recorded at fair value {being the on-exchange price) which results in a mismatch. As
described in note 15 this mismatch is reversed on the redemption of Currency Securities,

MAs a result, the Company's contractual and economic liability in connection with the issue and redemption of
Commodity Securities is matched by movements in comesponding Commodty Transactions. Whilst sensitivity
anabysis could be performed on this mismateh, the Company does nol have any net exposire 1o market price
risk., Furthermore the resuit of the numeric sensitivity is considered not material by the directors and in their
opinion, no sensitivity analysis is required to be disclosed.

{7} Fair Value Hierarchy
The levels in the higrarchy are defined as follows:

= Level1 fair value based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets,

« Level 2 fair values based on valuation technigues using observable inputs other than gquoted
Prices.

= Level 3 fair values based on valuation technigues using inputs that are not based on observable
market data,

Categorisation within the hlerarchy is determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement of each relevant assetfiability.

The Company is required to utilise the available on-market price as the Commodity Securities are quoted and
traded on the open market. Where the market on which the Commodity Securties prices are quoted is
determined to be active at the relevant reporting date, the Commodity Securities are classified as level 1
financial liabilties, Where the market on which the Commodity Securtties prices are guoted is determined to
be inactive at the relevant reporting date, the Commedity Securities are classified as level 2 financial liabilities.
The Company values the Level 2 Commodity Securities using the unadjusted market price available at each
reporting date. This is considered to most appropriately reflect the price atwhich transactions would occur as
at the reporting date.
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12 Financial Risk Management [continued)
g} Fair Valuve Hierarchy (continued)

The Compary's rights in respect of Commodity Contracts relate to its contractual obligations to issue and
redeem Commeodity Securities at set prices on each trading day. These prices are based on an agreed formula
{set out in the Prospectus), and are equal to the published NAVS of each class of Commodity Security.
Therefore, Commodity Contracts are classified as level 2 inancial assets, asthe value is calculated using third
party pricing sources supported by observable, verifable inputs.

The categonsation of the Company's assets and (liabilites) are as shown below:

Fair Value as at 31 December
2022 2021
usD usD
Level 1
Commodity Securities (5,443,574 BBS) (5,018,967 ,024)
Level 2
Commodity Securities {12,285,749) (3, 466,8%5)
Commodity Contracts 5,526,745 526 5,026,725 552
5,514 450,777 5,023,258 657

The Commodity Securities and the Commodity Contracts are recognised at fair value upon initial recognition
and revalued to fair value in line with the Company’s accounting policy. There are no assets o liabilities
classified in level 3.

Transfers between levels would be recognised if there was a change in circumstances that prevented public
information in respect of Level 1 inputs from being available. Any such transfers would be recognised on the
date of the change in circumstances that cause the transfer. Transfers between levels may also be recognised
if the primary market on which the Commodity Securities prices are quoted was determined to be inactive at
the ralevant reporting date. The Company considers both the last trade date and trading volumes duning the
5 trading days leading up to each reporting date to determine ifthe market for a particular Commodity Secunty
is active. Transfers as a result of the analysis of the activity levels of the market are identified and recognised
at each reporting date.

There were no transfers of redassifications between Level 1 and Level 2 for any of the assels during the vear
or at the reporting date, As at 31 December 2022 Commodiy Securities with a fair value of USD 12,285,749
(2021: USD 3 466,885) were transferred from Level 1 to Level 2. Commodity Securities with a fair value of
USD 3 466,885 (2021: USD 2,181 420) were ransferred from Level 2 to Level 1.

13 Ultimate Controlling Party
In accordance with the disdosure requirements of IFRS the directors have determined that no entity meets the
definition of immediate parent or ultimate controlling party. The holder of issued equity shares is HoldCo, a

Jersey registered company. WisdomTree, Inc (formerdy WisdomTree Investments, Inc) is the ultimate
controlling party of HoldCoe.
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14. Events Occurring After the Reporting Period

In April 2023 the Company created and launched a new class of Classic Commodity Securities, WasdomTree
Calfomia Carbon Securities, which will be available for rading fFom 19 April 2023 on the Lendon Stock
Exchange and Borsa Raliana and from 20 April 2023 on Deutsche Borse. WisdomTree Califernia Carbon
Securities provide exposure to the performance ofthe Solactive California Carbon Rolling Futures ER Index,

There have been no other significant events that have occurred since the end of the reporting period up to the
date of signing the Financial Statements which would impact on the financial position of the Company disclosed
in the Staternent of Financial Position as at 31 December 2022, or on the results and cash flows of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

15 Mon-GAAP and Non-Statutory Information

As a result of the mis-mateh in the accounting valuation of Commodity Contracts (held b support the
Commodity Securities) and Commeodity Secunties (as disclosed in notes 7 and 8) the profits and losses and
comprehensive income ofthe Company presented in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income reflect gains and losses which represent the movernent in the cumulative difference between the value
of the Commodsty Contracts and the price of Commeodity Secumnties,

The Statement of Changes in Equity also reflects the fair value movements on both the Commodity Confracts
(held to support the Commodty Securities) and the Commodity Securities, These gains or losses on the
difference between the value of the Commeodity Contracts (held te support the Commodty Securities) and the
price of Commodity Securnties would be reversed on a subsequent redemption of the Commodity Securities
and cancellation ofthe corresponding Commodity Contracts.

Furthermore, each class of Commodity Security is issued under limited recourse arrangements whereby the
holders have recourse only to the relevant Commedity Contracts (held to support the Commodity Securities)
and not to the Commodity Contracts of any other class of Commodity Security or to the Company. As a result,
the Company dees not make gains frem trading in the underlying Commeodity Contracts (held to support the
Commodity Securities) and, from a commercial perspective (with the exception of the impact of Management
Fees and Licence Allwance) gains and losses in respect of Commodity Contracts (held to support the
Commodity Securities) will akvays be offset by a corresponding loss or gain on the Commodity Securities and
the Company does nol retain any net gains or losses.

The mismatched accounting values are as shown below:

Year ended 31 December

2022 2021

UsD usp

Change in Fair Value of Commodity Contracts 856,233,519 1,711,843 829
Change in Fair Value of Commodity Securities (781,840, 244) {1.737 445 951)
64,593,275 (25,503,132)

To reflect the commercial results, the Company has presented below a non-GAAP and non-Statutory
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income and Statement of Changes in Equity for the
period which reflect an Adpestrment from Market Value to Contractual Value (as set out in the Prospectus) of
Commodity Secunties, together with those gains or losses being transfemed to a separate reserve which is
deemed non-distributable.
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15.  Non-GAAP and Non-Statutory Information {continued)

(&)  Non-GAAP and Non-Stalutory Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprebensive Income

Income
Expenses.

Result Before Fair Value Movement

Change in Fair Value of Commodity Contracts
Change in Fair Value of Commodity Securities
Profit | (Loss) for the Year

Adjustment from Market Value to Contractual Value (as set out

in the Prospectus) of Commodity Securities
Adjusted Result
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Year ended 31 December
2022 2021
uso uso
28,769,450 28,255 088
(20,769.450) (20,256,588
856,233,510 1,711,843, 820
(751,640 243) {1,737, 446,961)
64,593,276 (25,503,132)
(B4,593,276) 25,503,132
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1% Nen-GAAP and Non-Statutory Information {continued)
(B Non-GAAP and Non-Statutory Statement of Changes in Equiy
Stated Retained Revaluation Total A
Capital Eamings Reserve' Equity Total
uso uso usp usp
Cpening Balance at 1 January 2021 2 - 31,784 765 31,784,767
Result and Total Comprehensive Income for the Year - (25.503,132) - (25.503,132) (255
Transfer to Revaluaton Reserve - 25503132 {25,503,132) -
Adjustment from Market Value to Contractual Value (as set
out in the Prospectus) of Commodity Securities - - - - 255
Balance at 31 December 2021 2 - 6,291,633 6,291,635
Opening Balance at 1 January 2022 2 - 6,291,633 5,291,635
Result and Total Comprehensive Income for the Year - 54,503,276 - 64,583,276 B4
Transfer to Revaluaton Resanve - (64583 276) 64 593 276 -
Adjustment from Market Value to Contractual Value (as set
cut in the Prospectus) of Commodity Securities - - - - (B4 5
Balance at 31 December 2022 2 = 70,884,909 70,884,911

! This represents the diferance bebween the value of Commadity Condracts and the price of Commaodity Securilies.
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43,465,291 158,837,178 21,631,241 (17,059,327) (2,323,224) 141,777,851 19,308,017
28,046,977  1,151,220,545 156,778,970 194,353,107 26,463,978 1,345,573,652 183,246,948
3,718,537 72,976,987 9,938,371 (1,287,828) (175,383) 71,689,159 9,762,988
11,025,562 336,223,359 45,788,578 (14,606,723) (1,989,217) 321,616,636 43,799,362
364,041 2,012,082 274,015 58,678 7,991 2,070,759 282,006
6,009,851 15,248,061 2,076,557 (325,949) (44,389) 14,922,112 2,032,168
32,483,643 41,292,628 5,623,436 (7,599,070) (1,034,879) 33,693,558 4,588,557
14,728,219 590,110,736 80,364,231 (94,589,815)  (12,881,714) 495,520,922 67,482,517
22,608,847 25,845,719 3,519,799 4,571,157 622,523 30,416,876 4,142,322
1,822,931 5,497,706 748,705 (33,614) (4,578) 5,464,092 744,127
92,110,973 357,081,687 48,629,170 495,223,228 67,441,975 852,304,915 116,071,145
303,119 2,164,343 294,751 4,823,050 656,827 6,987,394 951,578
12,299,498 4,361,192 593,929 945,777 128,801 5,306,969 722,730
84,822 1,757,885 239,398 (7,081) (964) 1,750,804 238,433
3,884,705,938 53,589,127 7,298,035 15,474,729 2,107,426 69,063,856 9,405,461
7,473,087 94,815,900 12,912,503 113,891,083 15,510,257 208,706,983 28,422,760
3,145,991 64,059,812 8,723,986 1,865,636 254,072 65,925,448 8,978,057
557,319 13,674,829 1,862,307 3,552,739 483,830) 17,227,568 2,346,136
409,474 2,548,078 347,010 755,658 102,909 3,303,737 449,919
1,331,336 11,716,040 1,595,549 1,817,270 247,485 13,533,309 1,843,034
136,419 11,081,939 1,509,194 (3,887,905) (529,474) 7,194,034 979,720
137,211 4,798,053 653,423 1,583,696 215,676 6,381,749 869,098
133,148,499 132,577,980 18,055,132 (28,842,070) (3,914,239) 103,835,910 14,140,893
274,760 3,468,852 472,406 230,398 27,700 3,672,250 500,105
1,855,270 20,761,574 2,827,415 (3,066,979) (417,676) 17,694,595 2,409,739
3,177,722,290 432,758,110 667,912,847 90,959,711 3,845,635,137 523,717,821
1,000,000 4 0.53 ) ©) 3 0.44
1,000,000 34 4.68 14 2 48 6.53
1,000,000 20 2.69 ©) ©) 19 2.63
1,000,000 - - 29 4 29 3.97
1,000,000 6 0.75 0 0 6 0.77
1,000,000 3 0.35 ©) ©) 2 0.34
1,000,000 1 0.18 ©) ©) 1 0.14
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1,000,000 40 5.39 (6) @ 34 4.56
1,000,000 0.15 0 0 1 0.18
1,000,000 0.45 ©) ©) 3 0.41
1,000,000 - - 9 1 9 1.26
1,000,000 12 1.64 11 2 23 3.14
1,000,000 0 0.05 0 0 0 0.06
1,000,000 20 2.74 1 0 21 2.81
1,000,000 0 0.00 ©) ©) 0 0.00
1,000,000 19 2.64 9 1 28 3.80
1,000,000 24 3.22 0 0 24 3.22
1,000,000 21 2.83 0 0 21 2.85
1,000,000 24 3.32 7 1 31 4.21
1,000,000 0.86 2 0 8 1.10
1,000,000 1.25 1 0 10 1.38
1,000,000 80 10.90 @n 0 53 7.18
1,000,000 32 4.33 15 2 47 6.33
1,000,000 1 11 ©) ©) 1 0.11
1,000,000 11 1.47 @) ©) 10 1.30

371 51 60 8 432 59
48,201,512 321,564,989 43,792,328 2,760,716 375,968 324,325,705 44,168,296
11,205,932 106,517,501 14,506,086 24,565,458 3,345,447 131,082,960 17,851,533
15,642,932 36,908,270 5,026,353 33,315,975 4,537,136 70,224,246 9,563,489
6,458,806 25,696,403 3,499,465 6,007,536 830,393 31,793,939 4,329,858
37,820,956 660,159,128 89,903,771  (48,735,886)  (6,637,097) 611,423,242 83,266,674
1,309,618 3,082,352 419,770 105,801 14,408 3,188,153 434,179
283,361 2,396,598 326,381 2,780,874 378,713 5,177,473 705,094
1,633,263 36,241,677 4,935,573 (1,659,959) (226,062) 34,581,717 4,709,511
702,404 3,228,725 439,704 (183,657) (25,011) 3,045,068 414,693
1,195,795,643 162,849,430 19,046,859 2,503,896  1,214,842,502 165,443,326
4,375,518,304 595,607,590 686,959,766 93,553,616  5,060,478,071 689,161,206
3,400 148,857 20,272 14,260 1,942 163,117 22,214
15,000 289,163 39,380 20 3 (6,206,287 (845,203)
(212,762)  (6,538,000) (890,378) 331,714 45,174 (6,206,287) (845,203)
109,600 272,224 37,073 (93) @13) 272,130 37,060
82,764 2,793,404 380,420 (8,865) (1,207) 2,784,539 379.212
65,500 591,136 80,504 14,937 2,034 606,073 82,538
(72,963,600)  (1,301,874) (177,296) 4,608 640 (1,297,176) (176,656)
(3,443) (99,349) (13,530) 3,193 435 (96,155) (13,095)
(50,000) (426,439) (58,075) 23,027 3,136 (403,412) (54,939)
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(61,000) (620,078) (84,445) - - (620,076) (84,445)
(247,200) (188,385) (25,655) (4,394) (598) (192,779) (26,254)
(5,079,343) (691,730) 378,498 51,546 (4,700,845) (640,185)

275,104 1,850,798 252,051 250 34 1,851,048 252,085
(157,013)  (1,835,894) (250,021) (296) 40) (1,836,190) (250,062)
(141,200)  (2,284,716) (311,144) 2,041 278 (2,282,675) (310, 866)
(33,000) (636,504) (86,682) 1,302 177 (635,202) (86,505)
(2,906,316) (395,797) 3,297 449 (2,903,019) (395,348)

(7,985,659) (1,087,527) 381,795 51,995 (7.603,864)  (1,035,532)

4,365,532,645 594,520,063 687,341,561 93,605,611  5,502,874,206 688,125,674

22,261 1,062,747 144,730 230,119 31,339 1,292,866 176,069
34,936 1,066,363 145,223 929,309 126,558 1,995,672 271,781
2,129,110 289,953 1,159,428 157,897 3,288,538 447,850
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1,000,000 46 6.31 12 2 58 7.91
1,000,000 32 4.37 17 2 50 6.74
1,000,000 7 0.92 1 0 8 1.08
1,000,000 12 1.66 1 0 13 1.75
1,000,000 2 0.33 0 0 3 0.39
100 14 31 4 131 18
68,724 1,471,358 200,377 751,333 102,320 2,222,690 302,697
401,854 5,758,424 784,211 (555,319) (75,626) 5,203,105 708,585
167,489 4,089,302 556,902 846,175 115,236 4,935,477 672,138
90,980 2,295,517 312,615 (109,743) (14,945) 2,185,774 297,670
13,614,599 1,854,104 932,447 126,985 14,547,046 1,981,089
15,743,809 2,144,071 2,001,907 284,886 17,835,716 2,428,957

15,743,809 2,144,071 2,091,907 284,886 17,835,716 2,428,957
455,754 9,687,765 1,319,328  (2,186,062) (297,709) 7,501,703 1,021,619
253,165 4,030,486 548,892 106,448 14,497 4,136,934 563,388
147,368 2,274,848 309,800 350,307 47,706 2,625,154 357,507
128,410 23,722,653 3,230,669  (1,187,647) (161,740) 22,535,006 3,068,930
792,055 5,047,833 687,439  (2,306,059) (314,051) 2,741,774 373,388
1,812,357 44,042,071 5,997,869  (8,6285,311)  (1,175,047) 35,413,760 4,822,823
499,468 4,306,789 586,520 (393,601) (53,603) 3,913,188 532,918

93,112,444 12,680,518  (14,244,924) (1,939,945) 78,867,520 10,740,573
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122,515 6,005,637 817,878 (86,850) (9,376) 5,936,788 808,501

63,452 1,395,486 190,044 171,201 23,315 1,566,687 213,350

7,401,123 1,007,922 102,352 13,939 7,503,474 1,021,861

100,513,567 13,688,440 (14,142,573) (1,926,006) 86,370,994 11,762,434
(51,900) (899,888) (122,551) 45,614 6,212 (854,273) (116,339)
(11,100) (1,924,021) (262,023) (23,947) (3,261) (1,947,968) (265,284)
16,000 320,594 43,660 (7,951) (1,083) 312,643 42,577
12,000 93,206 12,693 811 110 94,017 12,804
(2,410,109) (328,221) 14,528 1,978 (2,395,582) (326,242)
98,103,458 13,360,219  (14,128,045) (1,924,028) 83,975,412 11,436,192
1,547,037 5,454,010 742,754 (1,703,233) (231,955) 3,750,777 510,800
416,233 399,043 54,344 25,404,432 3,459,703 25,803,475 3,514,046
523,879 30,533,775 4,158,242 (2,419,289) (329,471) 28,114,486 3,828,771
6,734,980 8,417,802 1,146,378 (3,186,424) (433,943) 4,231,379 712,435
1,881,521 9,304,214 1,267,094 728,711 99,239 10,032,925 1,366,334
886,512 9,445,066 1,286,276 (2,573,281) (350,442) 6,871,784 935,834
875,005 2,067,331 281,539 1,038,590 141,440 3,105,921 422,980
15,239,473 18,539,614 2,524,817 11,924,269 1,623,907 30,463,883 4,148,724
62,211 224,188 30,531 4,912,541 669,014 5,136,729 699,545
10,198,721 17,131,393 2,333,039 119,273,540 16,243,267 136,404,934 18,576,306
6,641,821 14,207,351 1,934,828 3,076,763 419,009 17,284,114 2,353,837
7,662,715 46,446,092 6,325,261 (2,021,929) (275,356) 44,424,163 6,049,905
1,267,887 3,476,407 473,435 732,514 99,757 4,208,921 573,192
351,980 5,723,968 779,519 156,710 21,342 5,880,678 800,860
171,370,254 23,338,058 155,343,914 21,155,511 326,714,168 44,493,569
367,514 3,261,230 444,131 910,237 123,961 4,171,467 568,091
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W W W w w

64,048 (81,629) 11,117 2,933,642 399,518 2,852,013 388,401
3,179,601 433,014 3,843,880 523,479 7,023,480 956,493
174,549,855 23,771,072 159,187,794 21,678,990 333,737,649 45,450,062
4,500 277,318 37,767 1,649 225 278,968 37,9901
3,000 160,998 21,926 - - 160,998 21,926
(139,300) (111,814) (15,227) 3,613 492 (108,201) (14,735)
(119,000) (644,967) (87,835) 10,418 1,419 (634,549) (86,416)
(15,653) (117,960) (16,064) (3,374) (459) (121,334) (16,524)
139,100 289,200 39,385 (11,138) (1,517) 278,063 37,868
195,600 2,492,207 339,401 123,686 16,871 2,616,093 356,273
334,000 869,173 118,368 - - 869,173 119,368
4,400 70,244 9,566 3,269 445 73,513 10,011
3,284,399 447,286 128,324 17,476 3,412,723 464,762
177,834,254 24,218,358 159,316,118 21,696,466 337,150,372 45,914,823
4,589,199 18,268,443 2,487,888  (6,724,685) (915,801) 11,543,758 1,572,087
37,182,892 9,472,995 1,290,080  (9,472,995)  (1,290,080) - -
55,725  (20,788,042) 2,831,020 20,788,042 2,831,020 - -
217,501 1,251,784 170,474 927,072 126,253 2,178,857 296,728
5,445,218 26,064,716 3,549,623  (11,464,234)  (1,561,257) 14,600,482 1,988,367
34,269,561 4,667,046  (5,946,800) (809, 865) 28,322,096 3,857,181
3
(53,200) (146,410) (19,939) 12,590 1,715 (133,820) (18,224)
6,600 68,653 9,350 (2,536) (345) 66,117 9,004
(12,200) (30,578) (4,164) (2,134) (291) (32,712) (4,455)
(108,335) (14,754) 7,919 1,078 (100,416) (13,675)
34,161,561 4,652,292 (5,938,881) (808,786) 28,222,681 3,843,506
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4,698,595,432 639,878,219 828,150,094 112,781,621 5,526,745,526 752,659,839

(7,219,705) (983,215) 532,566 72,527 (6,687,139) (910,688)

4,691,375,727 638,895,003 828,682,660 112,854,148  5,520,058,387 751,749,151
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)
1
WisdomTree 2023 3 31
127,322,677.69 17,339,439
127,322,677.69 17,339,439
14,519,469,238
1 - -
/7))
1 0.00877 1.194
WisdomTree WTI 2023 3 31
697,326,616.94 94,965,425
697,326,616.94 94,965,425
79,566,720
1 - -
/)
1 8.76405 1,193.532
WisdomTree 2023 3 31
6,177,949.46 841,344
6,177,949.46 841,344
130,770
1 - -
/7))
1 47 .24287 6,433.770
WisdomTree 2023 3 31
171,233,101.15 23,319,380
171,233,101.15 23,319,380
52,252,236
1 - -
/7))
1 3.27705 446.285
WisdomTree 2023 3 31

1,671,847,512.43

227,680,553

160/216




EDINETOOOO

O000oO00oooooo00o0O00ooo0oboOo0oOoOE23770)
OoooooooooooOooao

1,671,847,512.43

227,680,553

46,100,231
1 - -
/7))
1 36.26549 4,938.816
WisdomTree 2023 3 31
175,393,949.33 23,886,025
175,393,949.33 23,886,025
7,936,153
1 - -
/7))
1 22.10063 3,009.774
WisdomTree 2023 3 31
95,040,758.62 12,943,126
95,040,758.62 12,943,126
140,370,799
1 - -
/7))
1 0.67707 92.207
WisdomTree 2023 3 31
27,748,137.40 3,778,880
27,748,137.40 3,778,880
20,988,247
1 - -
/7))
1 1.32208 180.047
WisdomTree 2023 3 31
15,161,435.58 2,064,760
15,161,435.58 2,064,760
491,086
1 - -
/7))
1 30.87328 4,204.478
WisdomTree

2023 3 31
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119,442,009.16 16,266,210
119,442 ,009.16 16,266,210
10,840,093
1 - -
/7))
1 11.01854 1,500.560
WisdomTree 2023 3 31
58,483,460.50 7,964,570
58,483,460.50 7,964,570
15,979,422
1 - -
/7))
1 3.65992 498.427
WisdomTree 2023 3 31
634,513,450.40 86,411,214
634,513,450.40 86,411,214
40,281,356
1 -_ -
/7))
1 15.75204 2,145.191
WisdomTree 2023 3 31
297,513,959.72 40,516,939
297,513,959.72 40,516,939
44,328,578
l -— -
/)
1 6.71156 914.014
WisdomTree 2023 3 31
26,913,397.79 3,665,201
26,913,397.79 3,665,201
7,339,406
1 - -
/7))

162/216

OOoooooooooooOooao



EDINETOOOO

O000oO00oooooo00o0O00ooo0oboOo0oOoOE23770)
OOoooooooooooOooao

1 3.66697 499.387
WisdomTree
13 2018 12 31 426,629,882 1,043,450,100 955,899,750
14 2019 12 31 2,153,387,885 1,102,217,396 2,007,070,239
15 2020 12 31 13,587,526,500 11,282,269,201 4,312,327,538
16 2021 12 31 8,740,192,500 9,989,707,000 3,062,813,038
17 2022 12 31 9,681,458,500 8,859,565,600 3,884,705,938
WisdomTree WTI
13 2018 12 31 106,379,552 114,826,926 72,797,244
14 2019 12 31 110,029,187 125,398,965 57,427,466
15 2020 12 31 973,821,652 701,356,479 329,892,639
16 2021 12 31 252,385,846 361,904,310 220,374,175
17 2022 12 31 114,744,108 243,007,310 92,110,973
WisdomTree
13 2018 12 31 477,006 522,949 142,614
14 2019 12 31 422,900 409,248 156,266
15 2020 12 31 1,167,200 1,013,579 309,887
16 2021 12 31 147,150 264,826 192,211
17 2022 12 31 339,900 394,900 137,211
WisdomTree
13 2018 12 31 42,001,295 58,473,898 24,501,360
14 2019 12 31 43,275,300 56,244,377 11,532,283
15 2020 12 31 35,174,945 32,438,348 14,268,880
16 2021 12 31 54,065,722 54,849,241 13,485,361
17 2022 12 31 67,747,393 37,767,463 43,465,291
WisdomTree
13 2018 12 31 13,283,699 14,886,588 6,927,911
14 2019 12 31 13,446,373 11,738,124 8,636,160
15 2020 12 31 20,189,277 18,059,691 10,765,746
16 2021 12 31 29,283,004 26,508,554 13,540,196
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17 2022 12 31 16,112,323 14,924,300 14,728,219|
WisdomTree
13 2018 12 31 40,149,063 9,348,597 40,759,051
14 2019 12 31 10,956,548 16,800,439 34,915,160
15 2020 12 31 14,900,549 20,429,084 29,386,625
16 2021 12 31 14,411,042 33,197,538 10,600,129
17 2022 12 31 9,039,458 12,166,500 7,473,087
WisdomTree
13 2018 12 31 128,339,114 184,919,672 102,198,192
14 2019 12 31 33,485,598 53,286,221 82,397,569
15 2020 12 31 156,493,700 161,812,376 77,078,893
16 2021 12 31 154,408,306 160,918,100 70,569,099
17 2022 12 31 164,068,100 101,488,700 133,148,499
WisdomTree
13 2018 12 31 53,594,785 61,993,068 38,418,172
14 2019 12 31 27,077,044 30,769,905 34,725,311
15 2020 12 31 82,099,200 78,600,472 38,224,039
16 2021 12 31 98,562,536 113,036,128 23,750,447
17 2022 12 31 94,377,300 95,518,900 22,608,847
WisdomTree
13 2018 12 31 1,786,647 1,578,642 923,069
14 2019 12 31 672,307 1,052,403 542,973
15 2020 12 31 905,504 961,300 487,177
16 2021 12 31 1,898,642 1,804,000 581,819
17 2022 12 31 2,316,700 2,341,200 557,319
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WisdomTree
13 2018 12 31 17,051,463 33,429,390 27,052,496
14 2019 12 31 5,039,285 13,238,743 18,853,038
15 2020 12 31 3,145,597 11,376,920 10,621,715
16 2021 12 31 13,709,100 9,495,083 14,835,732
17 2022 12 31 4,686,300 8,313,100 11,208,932
WisdomTree
13 2018 12 31 43,372,284 55,401,634 11,193,167
14 2019 12 31 23,178,055 25,792,328 8,578,894
15 2020 12 31 28,053,107 23,130,787 13,501,214
16 2021 12 31 29,307,229 19,787,011 23,021,432
17 2022 12 31 21,857,500 29,236,000 15,642,932
WisdomTree
13 2018 12 31 45,201,289 40,689,175 17,104,748
14 2019 12 31 32,916,947 40,254,506 9,767,189
15 2020 12 31 20,676,329 15,536,873 14,906,645
16 2021 12 31 39,690,109 14,243,880 40,352,874
17 2022 12 31 24,286,201 26,818,119 37,820,956
WisdomTree
13 2018 12 31 67,958,596 49,143,672 76,872,362
14 2019 12 31 36,303,801 60,151,830 53,024,333
15 2020 12 31 15,963,069 38,599,068 30,388,334
16 2021 12 31 31,715,648 23,120,691 38,983,291
17 2022 12 31 59,579,521 50,361,300 48,201,512
WisdomTree
13 2018 12 31 2,635,277 2,261,072 6,910,829
14 2019 12 31 420,150 559,603 6,771,376
15 2020 12 31 3,483,030 1,704,000 8,550,406
16 2021 12 31 4,500,000 5,109,000 7,941,406
17 2022 12 31 10,072,900 11,555,500 6,458,806
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1.
1.1
1998 Collective
Investment Funds(Jersey) Law 1998 CIF 1958
Control of Borrowing (Jersey) Order 1958
Jersey Financial
Services Commission
2.1 2.3
2.
2.1
(a) 15
(b)
©)

(D

166/216



EDINETOOOO
O000oO00oooooo00o0O00ooo0oboOo0oOoOE23770)
OOoooooooooooOooao

2.2 CIF

CIF

@)

(b)

©

@
() 50

©)

CIF

5.2
CIF

2.3
50

2.1
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1998
Services (Jersey) Law 1998 FSL
3. FSL
CIF
FSL
FSL
FSL

managed entity

entity MoME
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5.1
CIF

@

(b)

5.2

100,000

OECD

169/216



5.3

5.4

EDINETOOOO
O000oO00oooooo00o0O00ooo0oboOo0oOoOE23770)
OOoooooooooooOooao

OECD

50

1995 Collective
Investment Funds (Unclassified Funds) (Prospectus) (Jersey) Order 1995
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5.5

2003

Funds (Recognized Funds) (Rules) (Jersey) Order, 2003

7.1

@
(b)
©)
(d)

CIF
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2000

CIF
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR®"S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF WISDOMTREE COMMODITY SECURITIES LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of WisdomTree Commodity Securities Limited (the
““company””) for the year ended 31 December 2021 which comprise the Statement of Profit or
Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of
Cash Flows, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the related notes 1 to 15, including a
summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has
been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International Financial Reporting
Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (““IFRS”>7).

In our opinion, the financial statements:

a2/ give a true and fair view of the state of the company"s affairs as at 31 December 2021
and of its loss for the year then ended;

have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRS; and

52 have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies
(Jersey) Law 1991.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (I1SAs
(UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, including the UK FRC"s Ethical
Standard as applied to listed public interest entities, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors® use of the
going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is
appropriate. Our evaluation of the directors® assessment of the company®s ability to
continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting included:

32 We obtained an understanding of management®s rationale for using the going concern
basis of accounting and confirmed our understanding of management®s Going Concern
assessment process including the process they adopted to capture all key factors in
their assessment;

32 We obtained management”s board approved going concern assessment covering the
period of assessment from the date of signing to 30 April 2023. Management®s
assessment has focussed on a combination of;

32 Assessing the ongoing viability of the company through continued involvement
of its Commodity Contract Counterparties and Authorised Participants;

52 Assessing the ongoing ability of WisdomTree Management Jersey Limited
(““ManJer””) to continue to meet its obligations as manager and pay all
expenses of the Company. This includes consideration of the assets under
management of all managed issuer entities (““Issuer Platform”) which
includes this Company. In assessing this ability we considered the fixed and
variable operating costs that could be supported under varying levels of
total assets under management for the Issuer Platform.
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TO THE MEMBERS OF WISDOMTREE COMMODITY SECURITIES LIMITED (continued)

32 Using our understanding of the business, we evaluated whether the considerations
and method adopted by management in assessing going concern was appropriate.

iz We performed reverse stress testing on the forecasts to understand how severe the
downside scenarios would have to be, and in particular the reduction in platform
assets under management, to result in the platform generating insufficient
management fees to cover operating costs. We observed significant headroom in
management fee income, at current Assets Under Management (““AUM>7?) levels, in
excess of fixed costs which supports management®s assumption that the Issuer
Platform is able to absorb heightened levels of volatility in AUM in the current
economic climate.

52/ We considered whether management®s disclosures, in the Annual Report and financial
statements, sufficiently and appropriately discloses information required in
respect of the going concern assumption applied through consideration of relevant
disclosure standards.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant
doubt on the company®s ability to continue as a going concern over the period to 30 April
2023.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going
concern are described in the relevant sections of this report. However, because not all
future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the
company”s ability to continue as a going concern.

Overview of our audit approach

Key audit 82/ Valuation of Financial Assets at fair value through profit and loss -
matters Commodity Transactions
:x Valuation of Financial Liabilities at fair value through profit and
loss — Commodity Securities
Materiality i Overall materiality of US$50.7m which represents 1% of total assets.

An overview of the scope of our audit
Tailoring the scope

Our assessment of audit risk, our evaluation of materiality and our allocation of
performance materiality determine our audit scope for the company. This enables us to form
an opinion on the financial statements. We take into account size, risk profile, the
organisation of the company and effectiveness of controls, including controls and changes
in the business environment when assessing the level of work to be performed. All audit
work was performed directly by the audit engagement team.

Changes from the prior year

There were no scoping changes compared to the prior year.

Climate change

The company has explained climate-related risks in the Corporate Social Responsibility
section of the Directors”™ Report. Our procedures on these disclosures therefore consisted
solely of considering whether these disclosures are materially inconsistent with the

Company”s Financial Statements, or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or
otherwise appear to be materially misstated.
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TO THE MEMBERS OF WISDOMTREE COMMODITY SECURITIES LIMITED (continued)

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period and include
the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud)
that we identified. These matters included those which had the greatest effect on: the
overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the
efforts of the engagement team. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the financial statements as a whole, and in our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters.

193/216



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR®"S REPORT

EDINETOOOO

O000oO00oooooo00o0O00ooo0oboOo0oOoOE23770)
OOoooooooooooOooao

TO THE MEMBERS OF WISDOMTREE COMMODITY SECURITIES LIMITED (continued)

Risk

Our response to the risk

Key observations communicated
to the Board

Valuation of Financial
Assets at fair value through
profit and loss — Commodity
Contracts

UsD 5,026,725,552
(2020: USD 4,218,667,859)

Refer to the Accounting
policies (pages 23-24); and
Note 7 of the Financial
Statements (pages 27-28)

Risk that Commodity Contract
values are misstated or that
valuations are incorrectly
calculated.

The Commodity Contracts held
comprise a range of
commodity derivatives that
are used by the Company to
provide holders of issued
securities with exposure
that is designed to track
the price of commodity
futures.

The Commodity Contracts are
carried at fair value as a
Financial Asset.

The risk comprises the risk
of errors in both the
valuation methodology
applied (including the risk
that the valuation
methodology has not been
determined in accordance
with the terms of the
applicable prospectus) and
in the source and timing of
valuation inputs utilised.

The balance of Commodity
Contracts represents in
excess of 99% of the
company®s total assets as at
31 December 2021 (2020: 99%)
and therefore any error in
valuation approach could be
significant.

The risk has remained
consistent with that
observed in the prior year.

Our response to the risk
comprised:

We walked through the
Company®s systems, controls
and process implemented in
respect of the valuation of
Commodity Contracts.

An assessment of the design
of the company®s systems and
controls implemented in
respect of Commodity
Contract valuation.

In executing our strategy,
we adopted a fully
substantive approach.

We obtained independent
confirmation, from the
contract counterparty, of
the contractual value of
contracts as at the
reporting date.

Agreement of the valuation
methodology applied to the
definition set out in the
prospectus and validation of
key inputs used to derive
the value of the Commodity
Contracts. This included
agreement of the price of
referenced commodities or
commodity indices to
external pricing sources as
at 31 December 2021.

Recalculation of the value
of a sample of Commodity
Contracts held at 31
December 2021, representing
93% of the total value of
Commodity Contracts held.

There were no matters
identified during our audit
work on valuation of
Commodity Contracts that we
brought to the attention of
the Board of Directors of
the company.

Based on our testing we are
satisfied that the valuation
of the Commodity Contracts

is not materially misstated
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TO THE MEMBERS OF WISDOMTREE COMMODITY SECURITIES LIMITED (continued)

Risk

Our response to the risk

Key observations communicated
to the Board

Valuation of Financial
Liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss -
Commodity Securities

usb 5,020,433,919
(2020: USD 4,186,873,094)

Refer to the Accounting
policies (pages 23-24); and
Note 8 of the Financial
Statements (pages 28-29)

Risk that values of
securities in issue are
misstated or that valuations
are incorrectly captured.

The Commodity Securities in
issue comprise a range of
financial instruments that
provide holders of issued
securities with exposure to
movements in prices of
Commodity without needing to
take physical delivery.

The Commodity Securities are
carried at fair value as a
Financial Liability.

The risk comprises the risk
of errors in both the
valuation methodology
applied and, in the source,
and timing of valuation
inputs utilised.

The balance of Commodity
Securities represents in
excess of 99% of the
company”s total liabilities
as at 31 December 2021
(2020: 99%) and therefore
any error in valuation
approach could be
significant.

The risk has remained
consistent with that
observed in the prior year.

Our response to the risk
comprised:

We walked through the
Company®s systems, controls
and process implemented in
respect of the valuation of
Commodity Securities.

An assessment of the design
of the company®"s systems and
controls implemented in
respect of Commodity
Securities valuation.

In executing our strategy,
we adopted a fully
substantive approach.

Assessed the appropriateness
of the valuation methodology
applied, comprising the use
of traded security prices to
value the Commodity
Securities, against relevant
IFRS requirements.

Independently obtained
security prices using
external pricing sources at
the balance sheet date.

Recalculated the value of
Commodity Securities held at
31 December 2021, by
multiplying the security
price by the confirmed
security balance in issue.
This represented 100% of the
total value of Commodity
Securities in issue.

There were no matters
identified during our audit
work on valuation of
Commodity Securities that we
brought to the attention of
the Board of Directors of
the company.

Based on our testing we are
satisfied that the valuation
of Commodity Securities is
not materially misstated
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TO THE MEMBERS OF WISDOMTREE COMMODITY SECURITIES LIMITED (continued)

Our application of materiality

We apply the concept of materiality in planning and performing the audit, in evaluating
the effect of identified misstatements on the audit and in forming our audit opinion.

Materiality

The magnitude of an omission or misstatement that, individually or in the aggregate, could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of the users of the financial
statements. Materiality provides a basis for determining the nature and extent of our
audit procedures.

We determined materiality for the company to be US$50.7 million (2020: US$42.18 million),
which is 1% (2020: 1%) of Total Assets. We believe that Total Assets provides us with an

appropriate basis for audit materiality as Total Assets reflects the relevant exposure of
holders of issued securities to the underlying asset base.

There has been no change in the basis of materiality used compared to the prior year.

Performance materiality

The application of materiality at the individual account or balance level. It is set at an
amount to reduce to an appropriately Ilow Ievel the probability that the aggregate of
uncorrected and undetected misstatements exceeds materiality.

On the basis of our risk assessments, together with our assessment of the company"s
overall control environment, our judgement was that performance materiality was 75% (2020:
50%) of our materiality, namely US$38.03m (2020: US$21.09m). We had set performance
materiality at 50% of our materiality in the prior year based on our prior experience of
identifying audit differences.

Reporting threshold
An amount below which identified misstatements are considered as being clearly trivial.

We agreed with the Board that we would report to them all uncorrected audit differences in
excess of US$2.54m (2020: US$2.11), which is set at 5% of materiality, as well as
differences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative
grounds.

We evaluate any uncorrected misstatements against both the quantitative measures of
materiality discussed above and in light of other relevant qualitative considerations in
forming our opinion.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report set out on
pages 1 to 9, other than the financial statements and our auditor®s report thereon. The
directors are responsible for the other information contained within the annual report.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except

to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.
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Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material
misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we
are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the

Companies (Jersey) Law 1991 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

22 proper accounting records have not been kept by the company, or proper returns
adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

32 the financial statements are not in agreement with the company"s accounting records
and returns; or

52 we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors® Responsibilities set out on page 9,
the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for
being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the
company”s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor®™s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor®s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK)
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.
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Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting
irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and
regulations. We design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to
detect irregularities, including fraud. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional
misrepresentations, or through collusion. The extent to which our procedures are capable
of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below.

However, the primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with
both those charged with governance of the company and management.

32 We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are
applicable to the company and determined that the most significant are those that
relate to the reporting framework, comprising IFRS and Companies (Jersey) Law 1991.
In addition, we concluded that there are certain significant laws and regulations
that may have an effect on the presentation and disclosure of the financial
statements being the applicable Listing Rules of the UK Listing Authority and the
Central Bank of Ireland (Investment Market Conduct) Rules;

32 We understood how WisdomTree Commodity Securities Limited is complying with those
frameworks by making enquiries of the directors and key management of the
administrative service provider. We corroborated our enquiries through our review
of minutes of Board meetings, papers provided to the board and correspondence
received from regulatory bodies and noted no contradictory evidence;

32 We assessed the susceptibility of the company®s financial statements to material
misstatement, including how fraud might occur by understanding the investment
objectives of the Company and discussing with management to understand where
reporting was considered susceptible to fraud. Where this risk was considered to be
higher, we performed audit procedures in response to the identified fraud risk.
These procedures included testing of transactions to supporting documentation,
testing of specific accounting journal entries and focussed testing, including that
referred to in the key audit matters section above. These procedures were designed
to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements were free from fraud
or error;

32 Based on this understanding we designed our audit procedures to identify non-

compliance with such laws and regulations. Our procedures involved a review of

board minutes to identify any non-compliance with laws and regulations, a review of
any associated reporting submitted to the board on compliance with laws and
regulations and enquiries of members of management of the appointed administrative
service provider.

As the Company operates in the asset management industry the Audit Partner
reviewed the experience of the engagement team and concluded that the team had the
appropriate competence and capabilities.

N
>

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is
located on the Financial Reporting Council®s website at
https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor"s report.
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Other matters we are required to address

a2 Following the recommendation from those charged with governance, we were appointed by
the company on 3 December 2019 to audit the financial statements for the year ending 31
December 2019 and subsequent financial periods.
The period of total uninterrupted engagement including previous renewals and
reappointments is 3 years, covering the years ending 31 December 2019 to 31 December
2021.

82 The non-audit services prohibited by the FRC"s Ethical Standard were not provided to
the company and we remain independent of the company in conducting the audit.

82 The audit opinion is consistent with the additional report to those charged with
governance.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company®"s members, as a body, in accordance with Article
113A of the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we
might state to the company®s members those matters we are required to state to them in an
auditor®s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do
not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company®s
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have
formed.

Christopher David Gordon Barry, FCA
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP
Jersey, Channel Islands

Date: 27 April 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR®"S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF WISDOMTREE COMMODITY SECURITIES LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of WisdomTree Commodity Securities Limited (the
““company””) for the year ended 31 December 2022 which comprise the Statement of Profit or
Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of
Cash Flows, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the related notes 1 to 15, including a
summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has
been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International Financial Reporting
Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (““IFRS”>7).

In our opinion, the financial statements:

22 give a true and fair view of the state of the company"s affairs as at 31 December 2022
and of its profit for the year then ended;

have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRS; and

52 have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies
(Jersey) Law 1991.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (I1SAs
(UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, including the UK FRC"s Ethical
Standard as applied to listed public interest entities, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors® use of the
going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is
appropriate. Our evaluation of the directors® assessment of the company®s ability to
continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting included:

32 We obtained an understanding of management®s rationale for using the going concern
basis of accounting and confirmed our understanding of management®s Going Concern
assessment process including the process they adopted to capture all key factors in
their assessment;

32 We obtained management”s board approved going concern assessment covering the
period of assessment from the date of signing to 30 April 2024. Management s
assessment has focussed on a combination of;

32 Assessing the ongoing viability of the company through continued involvement
of its Commodity Transaction Counterparty and Authorised Participants;

52 Assessing the ongoing ability of WisdomTree Management Jersey Limited
(““ManJer””) to continue to meet its obligations as manager and pay all
expenses of the Company. This includes consideration of the assets under
management of all managed issuer entities (““Issuer Platform”) which
includes this Company. In assessing this ability we considered the fixed and
variable operating costs that could be supported under varying levels of
total assets under management for the Issuer Platform.
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32 Using our understanding of the business, we evaluated whether the considerations
and method adopted by management in assessing going concern was appropriate.

iz We performed reverse stress testing on the forecasts to understand how severe the
downside scenarios would have to be, and in particular the reduction in platform
assets under management, to result in the platform generating insufficient
management fees to cover operating costs. We observed significant headroom in
management fee income, at current Assets Under Management (““AUM>7?) levels, in
excess of fixed costs which supports management®s assumption that the Issuer
Platform is able to absorb heightened levels of volatility in AUM.

32 We considered whether management®s disclosures, in the Annual Report and financial
statements, sufficiently and appropriately discloses information required in
respect of the going concern assumption applied through consideration of relevant
disclosure standards.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant
doubt on the company®s ability to continue as a going concern over the period to 30 April
2024.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going
concern are described in the relevant sections of this report. However, because not all
future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the
company”s ability to continue as a going concern.

Overview of our audit approach

Key audit 32 Valuation of Financial Assets at fair value through profit and loss -
matters Commodity Transactions
32 Valuation of Financial Liabilities at fair value through profit and
loss — Commodity Securities
Materiality [(i Overall materiality of US$55.50m which represents 1% of total assets.

An overview of the scope of our audit
Tailoring the scope

Our assessment of audit risk, our evaluation of materiality and our allocation of
performance materiality determine our audit scope for the company. This enables us to form
an opinion on the financial statements. We take into account size, risk profile, the
organisation of the company and effectiveness of controls, changes in the business
environment and the potential impact of climate change when assessing the level of work to
be performed. All audit work was performed directly by the audit engagement team.

Changes from the prior year There were no scoping changes compared to the prior year.

Climate change

There has been increasing interest from stakeholders as to how climate change will impact
companies. The company has determined that there are no directly observed impacts of
climate change on the business due to the nature of the company and its operations. This
is explained on page 6 in the corporate social responsibility section, which form part of
the““Other information,””rather than the audited financial statements. Our procedures on
these disclosures therefore consisted solely of considering whether they are materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the
audit or otherwise appear to be materially misstated.
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Our audit effort in considering climate change was focused on evaluating management®s
assessment of the impact of climate risk, physical and transition, the adequacy of the
company”s disclosures in the financial statements as set out in note 2 and conclusion that
there was no further impact of climate change to be taken into account as the material
assets and liabilities are valued based on market pricing as required by IFRS.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period and include
the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud)
that we identified. These matters included those which had the greatest effect on: the
overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the
efforts of the engagement team. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the financial statements as a whole, and in our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters.
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TO THE MEMBERS OF WISDOMTREE COMMODITY SECURITIES LIMITED (continued)

Risk

Our response to the risk

Key observations
communicated to the Board

Valuation of Financial
Assets at fair value through
profit and loss — Commodity
Contracts

USD 5,526,745,526
(2021: USD 5,026,725,552)

Refer to the Accounting
policies (pages 26-27); and
Note 7 of the Financial
Statements (pages 30-31)

Risk that Commodity Contract
values are misstated or that
valuations are incorrectly
calculated.

The Commodity Contracts held
comprise a range of
commodity derivatives that
are used by the Company to
provide holders of issued
securities with exposure
that is designed to track
the price of commodity
futures.

The Commodity Contracts are
carried at fair value as a
Financial Asset.

The risk comprises the risk
of errors in both the
valuation methodology
applied (including the risk
that the valuation
methodology has not been
determined in accordance
with the terms of the
applicable prospectus) and
in the source and timing of
valuation inputs utilised.

The balance of Commodity
Contracts represents in
excess of 99% of the
company®s total assets as at
31 December 2022 (2021: 99%)
and therefore any error in
valuation approach could be
significant.

The risk has remained
consistent with that
observed in the prior year.

Our response to the risk
comprised:

We walked through the
Company®s systems, controls
and process implemented in
respect of the valuation of
Commodity Contracts.

An assessment of the design
of the company®"s systems and
controls implemented in
respect of Commodity
Contract valuation.

In executing our strategy,
we adopted a fully
substantive approach.

We obtained independent
confirmation, from the
contract counterparty, of
the contractual value of
contracts as at the
reporting date.

Agreement of the valuation
methodology applied to the
definition set out in the
prospectus and validation of
key inputs used to derive
the value of the Commodity
Contracts. This included
agreement of the price of
referenced commodities or
commodity indices to
external pricing sources as
at 31 December 2022.

Recalculation of the value
of a sample of Commodity
Contracts held at 31
December 2022, representing
94% of the total value of
Commodity Contracts held.

There were no matters
identified during our audit
work on valuation of
Commodity Contracts that we
brought to the attention of
the Board of Directors of
the company.

Based on our testing we are
satisfied that the valuation
of the Commodity Contracts

is not materially misstated.
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TO THE MEMBERS OF WISDOMTREE COMMODITY SECURITIES LIMITED (continued)

Risk

Our response to the risk

Key observations communicated
to the Board

Valuation of Financial
Liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss -
Commodity Securities

usD 5,455,860,617
(2021: USD 5,020,433,919)

Refer to the Accounting
policies (pages 26-27); and
Note 8 of the Financial
Statements (pages 31-32)

Risk that values of
securities in issue are
misstated or that valuations
are incorrectly captured.

The Commodity Securities in
issue comprise a range of
financial instruments that
provide holders of issued
securities with exposure to
movements in prices of
Commodity without needing to
take physical delivery.

The Commodity Securities are
carried at fair value as a
Financial Liability.

The risk comprises the risk
of errors in both the
valuation methodology
applied and, in the source,
and timing of valuation
inputs utilised.

The balance of Commodity
Securities represents in
excess of 99% of the
company”s total liabilities
as at 31 December 2022
(2021: 99%) and therefore
any error in valuation
approach could be
significant.

The risk has remained
consistent with that
observed in the prior year.

Our response to the risk
comprised:

We walked through the
Company®s systems, controls
and process implemented in
respect of the valuation of
Commodity Securities.

An assessment of the design
of the company®"s systems and
controls implemented in
respect of Commodity
Securities valuation.

In executing our strategy,
we adopted a fully
substantive approach.

Assessed the appropriateness
of the valuation methodology
applied, comprising the use
of traded security prices to
value the Commodity
Securities, against relevant
IFRS requirements.

Independently obtained
security prices using
external pricing sources at
the balance sheet date.

Recalculated the value of
Commodity Securities held at
31 December 2022, by
multiplying the security
price by the confirmed
security balance in issue.
This represented 100% of the
total value of Commodity
Securities in issue.

There were no matters
identified during our audit
work on valuation of
Commodity Securities that we
brought to the attention of
the Board of Directors of
the company.

Based on our testing we are
satisfied that the valuation
of Commodity Securities is
not materially misstated.
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Our application of materiality

We apply the concept of materiality in planning and performing the audit, in evaluating
the effect of identified misstatements on the audit and in forming our audit opinion.

Materiality

The magnitude of an omission or misstatement that, individually or in the aggregate, could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of the users of the financial
statements. Materiality provides a basis for determining the nature and extent of our
audit procedures.

We determined materiality for the company to be US$55.50 million (2021: US$50.70 million),
which is 1% (2021: 1%) of Total Assets. We believe that Total Assets provides us with an
appropriate basis for audit materiality as Total Assets reflects the relevant exposure of
holders of issued securities to the underlying asset base.

There has been no change in the basis of materiality used compared to the prior year.
Performance materiality

The application of materiality at the individual account or balance level. It is set at an
amount to reduce to an appropriately Ilow Ievel the probability that the aggregate of
uncorrected and undetected misstatements exceeds materiality.

On the basis of our risk assessments, together with our assessment of the company®s
overall control environment, our judgement was that performance materiality was 50% (2021:
75%) of our materiality, namely US$27.75m (2021: US$38.03m). We have set performance
materiality at this percentage in response to a number of errors in the financial
statement close process. We had set performance materiality at 75% of our planning
materiality in the prior year based on our prior experience of not identifying errors or
significant audit differences.

Reporting threshold
An amount below which identified misstatements are considered as being clearly trivial.

We agreed with the Board that we would report to them all uncorrected audit differences in
excess of US$2.78m (2021: US$2.54m), which is set at 5% of materiality, as well as
differences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative
grounds.

We evaluate any uncorrected misstatements against both the quantitative measures of
materiality discussed above and in light of other relevant qualitative considerations in
forming our opinion.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report set out on
pages 1 to 12, other than the financial statements and our auditor®s report thereon. The
directors are responsible for the other information contained within the annual report.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except

to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

213/216



EDINETOOOO
000000000000000000000000000000(E23770)
oooooooooooooog
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR"S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF WISDOMTREE COMMODITY SECURITIES LIMITED (continued)

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material
misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we
are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the

Companies (Jersey) Law 1991 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

22 proper accounting records have not been kept by the company, or proper returns
adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

32 the financial statements are not in agreement with the company"s accounting records
and returns; or

52 we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors® Responsibilities set out on page
12, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for
being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the
company”s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor®™s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor®s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK)
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.
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Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting
irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and
regulations. We design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to
detect irregularities, including fraud. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional
misrepresentations, or through collusion. The extent to which our procedures are capable
of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below.

However, the primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with
both those charged with governance of the company and management.

32 We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are
applicable to the company and determined that the most significant are those that
relate to the reporting framework, comprising IFRS and the Companies (Jersey) Law
1991. In addition, we concluded that there are certain significant laws and
regulations that may have an effect on the presentation and disclosure of the
financial statements being the applicable Listing Rules of the Central Bank of
Ireland (Investment Market Conduct) and UK Listing Authority Rules;

32 We understood how WisdomTree Commodity Securities Limited is complying with those
frameworks by making enquiries of the directors and key management of the
administrative service provider. We corroborated our enquiries through our review
of minutes of Board meetings, papers provided to the board and correspondence
received from regulatory bodies and noted no contradictory evidence;

32 We assessed the susceptibility of the company®s financial statements to material
misstatement, including how fraud might occur by understanding the investment
objectives of the Company and discussing with management to understand where
reporting was considered susceptible to fraud. Where this risk was considered to be
higher, we performed audit procedures in response to the identified fraud risk.
These procedures included testing of transactions to supporting documentation,
testing of specific accounting journal entries and focussed testing, including that
referred to in the key audit matters section above. These procedures were designed
to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements were free from fraud
or error;

32 Based on this understanding we designed our audit procedures to identify non-
compliance with such laws and regulations. Our procedures involved reading board
minutes to identify any non-compliance with laws and regulations, a review of any
associated reporting submitted to the board on compliance with laws and regulations
and enquiries of members of management of the appointed administrative service
provider.

32 As the Company operates in the asset management industry the Audit Partner
assessed the experience of the engagement team and concluded that the team had the
appropriate competence and capabilities.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is
located on the Financial Reporting Council®s website at
https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor®s report.
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Other matters we are required to address

a2 Following the recommendation from those charged with governance, we were appointed by
the company on 3 December 2019 to audit the financial statements for the year ending 31
December 2019 and subsequent financial periods.
The period of total uninterrupted engagement including previous renewals and
reappointments is 4 years, covering the years ending 31 December 2019 to 31 December
2022.

82 The non-audit services prohibited by the FRC"s Ethical Standard were not provided to
the company and we remain independent of the company in conducting the audit.

82 The audit opinion is consistent with the additional report to those charged with
governance.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company®"s members, as a body, in accordance with Article
113A of the Companies (Jersey) Law 1991. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we
might state to the company®s members those matters we are required to state to them in an
auditor®s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do
not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company®s
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have
formed.

Christopher David Gordon Barry, FCA
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP
Jersey, Channel Islands

Date 19 April 2023
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